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ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2006 BUDGET (C.c. 04-287, C.C. 05-19, C.c. 05-63, C.C. 05-82, and C.c. 05-120)

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for Monday. This is April 16, 17, 18, 2005. For the record, we have
Committee Members Carroll, Anderson, Mateo, Molina, Tavares, Kane. Members, this
morning, we are going to be meeting with the Department of Transportation; however,
before we get started with the Department and the questions along with their presentation,
we do have several people that have signed up to testify. So, we'd like to move forward
with that at this point in time.
We have a total of four minutes for you to testify, those of you signed up. We'll give you
the first three minutes, and then, we'll let you know that you've reached three minutes,
and that'll give you an additional minute to conclude your comments. Please state your
name for the record when you're here at the podium with us, and if you do represent an
organization, we'd like to know that as well.
And at this time, if you do have a cell phone or a pager, please if you can, turn it to the
off or to the silent mode, and that way we can avoid any unnecessary distractions. Okay.
With that being said, Members, our first testifier, Mr. Roy Katsuda. Mr. Katsuda will be
followed by Kim Davis .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. KATSUDA: Good morning, everyone, Chairman Kane and Council Members. My name
is Roy Katsuda. I am the Executive Director at Hale Mahaolu. Before I go into my
testimony for Hale Mahaolu, I'd like to put in a plug for funding for transportation, and
I'd like to just inform you that our seniors at Hale Mahaolu are very dependent on the
MEO buses, making their daily routes and picking them up for the necessary, necessary
items, that they encounter in their daily lives -- going to the medical clinic and shopping;
and social or recreational things. So, please support the funding budget for MEO buses.
I'm here for asking the Council for additional support for Hale Mahaolu's project, Ehiku.
We have 112 one-bedroom units, and commodity prices have risen dramatically in the
last few months. Well, three-story buildings requires fire sprinklers, but the one-story
buildings do not. We could not include those mainly because financial, because of
financial constraints.
We'd like to ask your help to allow us to put in these, to design and install these fire
sprinklers. Fire sprinklers would greatly reduce damages, cost of damages and of course
could help save a life. We have been fortunate at Hale Mahaolu, where we have not had
any loss of life, and we certainly do not want one. We believe that this would be helpful,
and we're requesting the Council to assist our 112 unit development, a manager's unit, a
senior center, and our daycare center and our residential care home in the final build-out.
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The cost to do this would be approximately 72,000 for design and installation, and that's
to equip the ground floor units with fire sprinklers. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Katsuda. Members, questions for Mr. Katsuda? Hearing none,
thank you very much.
MR. KATSUDA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Next to testify is Kim Davis. Ms. Davis will be followed by Stuart Kahan.
MS. DAVIS: Good morning. My name is Kim Davis, and I'm the Program Manager for Easter
Seals Hawaii here on Maui. I am here to advocate for the MEO budget. I am Manager
for two programs on Maui: the Adult Day Health program and Support Services program.
MEO has been a valuable partner for our agency, providing specialized transportation on
a daily basis for folks that have developmental disabilities. We would like to support
MEO as they have supported our participants. They are truly a partner and a circle of
support for our participants. The bus drivers, the attendants and the program has
provided a valuable service, so that folks in our program can get out into the community
and truly be a part of Maui community.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Davis. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you for
your testimony this morning. Stuart Kahan followed by May Fujiwara.
MR. KAHAN: Good morning, Chairman Kane and Members of the Council. My name is
Stuart Kahan. I'm the President of the Piilani Community Association, Piilani housing in
Lahaina. I'm also a member of Lahaina-Honolua Seniors Club.
The last time that I came here before you, I was not able to enumerate the number of
ways that the MEO assists us on the other side. So today, if you'll let me, I, I'm
requesting that MEO be reconsidered as a line item, item and that the following services
be continued to be supported and approved: legal services, migrant, seasonal farmworker
program, the employment core services for low-income persons, employment core
service for immigrants, homeless programs, senior community service employment
programs, chore service, senior community service employment program, the red
discount card service, transportation services and wheel chair services. All of these items
are accessed by our communities on the West Side.
In particular, transportation, this is so valuable to our community that it is, it is hard to
imagine living on Maui without the transportation services of MEO. So once again, I'm
requesting of you a line item support for MEO. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kahan. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you for
your testimony. May Fujiwara followed by Gladys Baisa.
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MS. FDJIW ARA: Good morning, Chairman Kane and Members of the Council. My name is
May Fujiwara, I'm speaking today for myself, for the members of the Lahaina-Honolua
Senior Citizens Club and for the many seniors who could not be here, merely because
they are no longer able to drive unassisted. I wish to add my voice to those that have
testified before you in public meetings regarding the value, which MEO specialized
transportation provides to our community.
With your support and the support all those that came before you MEO transportation has
grown over the years to provide a critical and necessary service that our seniors, persons
with medical needs, persons with disabilities and our youth, none of whom could not
attend positive youth activities that promote healthy living and keep them away from
drugs if it were not for MEO.
I'm sure that many of you have read the column in Sunday's Maui News by Marie Smith
of Kahakuloa who is now serving a two year term as national President of AARP The
column was entitled, "Transportation Systems Help Seniors Stay Connected as Well as
Independent." In that column she wrote and I quote, "We have learned through extensive
study that avoiding disease and maintaining physical and mental health function are not
the only ingredients for successful aging. The ability to continue as an engaged and
contributing member of a community is now recognized as a vital ingredient as well.
And that inherently implies that people need transportation to help them stay connected
and productive," close quote.
As you consider your decisions on the transportation policy for Maui County, I
respectfully request that you remember all that have you accomplished thus far and that
you protect those things, excuse me, and you protect those things more
than ... (inaudible) ...who rely upon you.
The past support of MEO is deeply
appreciated, and it goes without saying that, like MEO, we, too, can help people and
children's lives, perhaps even saved more lives than you will ever know. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Fujiwara. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
for your testimony. Gladys Baisa followed by Tony Fisher.
MS. BAlSA: Good morning, Council Chair and Members. Thank you for the opportunity to
testify this morning. My name is Gladys Baisa, and I'm the Executive Director of Maui
Economic Opportunity. I'm pleased to let you know that since the last time we were
here, MEO took the suggestion of Councilmember Tavares and initiated meetings and
discussions with the County Department of Transportation and the Mayor about how we
can work together cooperatively in planning for Maui County's transportation needs. As
a result of these discussions, a draft memorandum of agreement was drafted and after
reviewed by the parties involved and legal counsel, we are hopeful that the MOD will be
fully executed very soon.
I would like to state, once again, that MEO does not wish to receive Federal funding
since any Federal funding that is earmarked for mass transit for our transportation
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equipment or our operations. Mass transit is not what we do. We have been made aware
that these Federal funds come with restrictions that have restricted our ability to serve our
clients. MEO needs to have flexibility to provide needed specialized transportation
within the limits of our resources and capabilities to low-income seniors, persons with
disabilities, youth and those who do not have cars or drive.
Having flexibility can mean such things as a special trip for a senior club, unexpected
medical transportation, attendance at a Council meeting or an additional youth event.
Not all trips can be itemized in a contract many months before they occur.
I've also asked you to please fund MEO only with County funds and provide us the
flexibility in our contract. We understand the need to itemize in a contract the services
that must be provided; however, a clause providing MEO with some flexibility needs to
be included, so unanticipated needs can be met to the maximum extent possible. MEO is
in the process of returning to the County DOT all MEO buses that were purchased with
Federal funds. We have defleeted the vehicles, completed our portion of the required
paper work and intend to physically return the buses as soon as we are authorized to do
so by the County DOT.
By doing so, we expect to be free of the restrictions on the use of MEO buses purchased
with Federal funds, that have caused so many of the problems that we have experienced
this past year by having to limit our services to those itemized in our County contracts.
MEO continues to look forward to working with the Council and the Administration in
meeting the transportation needs of the people of Maui County. As we go forward with
Federal funds supporting mass transit and County funds supporting MEO's flexible,
specialized transportation, we believe that we can move ahead and solve the difficulties
that have plagued both systems in the past year.
We also believe that this will allow you to examine the recommendations of the Urbitran
report and decide how to proceed, knowing that the specialized transportation provided
by MEO will not be affected. Thank you for your many years of generous support for
MEO transportation. Throughout the budget hearings, the people of Maui County have
expressed their support and appreciation to you for the services provided.
MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MS. BAlSA: Access to transportation is vital for our people allowed to work; to a medical
appointment; to grocery shopping; and to government, religious or recreational activities
is vital to the quality of life in Maui County. Without that, even the best programs
become unavailable to those who need them the most. Thank you for the opportunity to
testify on this important subject. My staff and I are available should you need any
additional information.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Members, any questions for Ms. Baisa? Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you. Good morning, Ms. Baisa. How many
buses are going to be transferred to the County?
MS. BAlSA: I have my expert. Sandy.
MR. BAZ: Aloha. Chair, if I might answer the question. My name is Sandy Baz. I'm Deputy
Director at MEO. We have currently 21 buses that are Federal buses: seven of them are
active that we will be returning to the County and 14 of them have been previously
requested for defleeting, because they are inactive buses that were purchased between
1994 and 1996. But the seven buses are 2001 buses and still very useable.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What does defleeting mean?
MS. BAlSA: Defleeting means we're not using them anymore, and they're taken off of the active
fleet.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
County?

And when is all, all these 21 buses going to be received by the

MS. BAlSA: Our target date will be May 31, but we're hoping that, that can, date can be met,
but unfortunately, you know, every time you get into doing something with the
government and it has to be reviewed here, there and everywhere and signed off by a
whole bunch of people, it sometimes takes a little longer than we planned. But our target
date would be May 31st.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
So, have you received written documentation about this
noncompliance issue that is driving these buses being returned to the County?
MS. BAlSA: We are, we have made a request to the County DOT for written documentation,
and we have still not received that yet.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, you're being penalized for a issue that has not been settled? Is
that how I'm reading it?
MS. BAlSA: I would say that maybe a little differently that we ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I can phrase it that way.
MS. BAlSA: You know, you understand my position. I don't want to make any statements that I
cannot support. I was told that this needed to be done and that it is the legal
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interpretation. At the present time, this whole matter is being reviewed by MEO's legal
counsel and I have not received an answer yet.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, then if the situation is true then you should have given
our DOT the buses months ago then and let them deal with it.
MS. BAlSA: We're trying to work cooperatively with the County Department of Transportation.
We were hoping that we can develop some kind of a spirit of cooperation, because it's in
the best interest of the people we serve.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand that part from MEO.
County side yet. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I haven't seen that from the

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Ms. Anderson followed by Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you for being here, Gladys.
You said you're returning seven active buses. How will you replace those active buses?
MS. BAlSA: I'll defer to Sandy, who's really involved in the whole defleeting process.
MR. BAZ: Aloha. My understanding is that those seven buses are, were utilized for the public
transportation piece of Routes 1 and 2 and for wheelchair accessible transportation for the
dialysis. We have purchased four buses to replace the ones that were for the dialysis
transportation. We will be no longer operating Routes 1 and 2 as of June 30.
So, in the meantime, we are utilizing buses based on, our maintenance schedule, you
know, has been reduced, so that we can, we're, we're covering it by, by using these buses
more frequently than we would have. And so, occasionally there's more breakdowns, we
have to, we have to work on that, but it's costing us more operationally, but we can
handle it at least till June 30.
MS. BAlSA: The other thing is, we were here on Saturday morning and you approved the use of
that $197,000 to buy buses. And because we don't have to go into a bidding process,
because we're going to be allowed to use the quotes that we recently got by the County
DOT, we'll be able to expedite the purchase.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay and then the 14 inactive buses, they're inactive just
because they've, they've reached their life ... (inaudible) ...
MR. BAZ: Yes.
MS. BAlSA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so--
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MS. BAlSA: They are really not a value to us anyway. You know, I understand that getting rid
of buses would be a very simple thing. It isn't. Trying to, you know, defleet buses and
give them to other people is not as simple.
First of all, you have to determine that they're not useable anymore. Then you have to get
permission and all the paperwork done. And then you go through priority processes,
which we have developed. Like if a County department needed a bus that they could use,
like the Fire Department or maybe the Parks or whoever, then we try to work with them
and then with nonprofits in the community, who might be able to use them. So, it's a
whole thing of trying to dispose of buses. It's not that easy.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I think Member Anderson beat me
to the punch on that question regarding inactive buses. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for the Director or Deputy Director?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Good morning.
MS. BAlSA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The MOU that you referred too, can you tell me how MEO is
going to benefit from the, the discussion and the agreements that you have at this point
concluded?
MS. BAlSA: I'd like to apologize for you, I brought enough copies of the MOU, the latest
iteration of it. And I was hoping to pass them out to you, but obviously we didn't get the
word that you don't do 15 copies anymore, you do 18. And so, you'll be receiving those
after we talk. But the MOU does discuss how MEO will benefit, because it says that, and
it does clarify in an understanding between the County DOT and us, actually the County
and us, because it will be signed by the Mayor.
It says that we will not be the provider of mass transit services under the short-range
transit plan, which we totally agree to. It says that a focus on specialized transportation,
which again is very clear. It says that we support the use of Federal Transit
Money 5309 and 5311 for mass transit. It says that we will return the buses. It says that
we'll work together to support the implementation of the short-range transit plan, and that
they will put in the budget the planning money that the County needs to reimburse MEO
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for in the amount of $211,000, which we've been waiting for, for a very long time. It's
money we spent on planning for Puunene and then it was scrapped, but we still are out
the money, and I know the County DOT is going to ask for that.
It says we will not operate Routes 1 and 2 until after June 30, and we totally agree with
that, that is mass transit and MEO doesn't want to do that or shouldn't be doing it. And it
says that the County will not make any express or implied representation of the type or
amount of funding that we will receive. And that Sandy and Brian, Brian will be the
members of the MEO team, who will work with the County DOT in the implementation
of the MOU.

So it's very straight-forward, but it does put down in a legal form the understandings that
we have between the County and MEO.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much, and I'll look forward to receiving copies
of the MOU. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions in this area? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good morning, Gladys.
MS. BAlSA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Route 1 and 2, can you tell me or describe the route?
MS. BAlSA: Those routes are essentially in Kahului and Wailuku, and they are used by a lot of
people, who would normally ride an MEO system anyway, and the major use that they
use it for is to go to and from work. And we're hoping that the mass transit provider will
be able to continue that service that is potential that they will not be affected negatively.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
low-income people?

So, this route takes care of some of the so-called

MS. BAlSA: Correct. In low-income housing but it should, it should work, you know, if they
just pick up the route the way it is and continue to do it, it should be fine.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama followed by Mr. Molina.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you .. .I thought I heard that you are required to support the
Department's transit program? Is that what I heard?
MS. BAlSA: It says that we will work together to support the short-range transit plan.

-9-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 18, 2005

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But you're not in transit anymore.
MS. BAlSA: Oh, I think that the transit thing is bigger than just, you know, and it should be
bigger than just one piece of the pie. It should be the whole transit system for Maui
County, of which we hope to be the specialized transportation piece.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I'll wait, write to the Department, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. I must be having bad luck this
morning, Member Pontanilla took my question. You guys are way ahead of me, it's
Monday morning.
MS. BAlSA: It's just great minds.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I tell you great minds.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for the Director or the Deputy Director? Hearing none,
thank you very much for your testimony this morning.
MS. BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Next to testify we have Tony Fisher.
MR. FISHER: Good morning, Chair and Council Members. My name is Tony Fisher. I'm the
President of AARP South Maui Chapter, which is the largest AARP Chapter here in the
island of Maui. I'm here to support what was just discussed in great detail, and at a MEO
meeting we had last week, one of the issues was that there's a certain amount of money in
a pot which the Federal Government is giving to MEO at this moment. And as I
understand it, that money is to be given to the County, and then the County is going to
reimburse MEO for that same exact amount of money. And the result will be that they
will no longer be in non-compliance with a Federal Government requirement and it will
cost the County of Maui zero. And that is, to me, a win-win situation of the best possible
way.
I want to ensure everybody that part of the plan is not to put the MEO buses that are
defleeted, on the Mokulele Highway to be towed away. That's not part of the plan. In all
fairness, this, this seems to me one of those really no-brainers -- an expression we used to
years ago -- where everybody will benefit from this. The people in South Maui regularly
use MEO for our specialized transportation needs down there, and I think it's just a
marvelous opportunity, continue the service that we presently have without it costing the
County a nickel, because the money just goes in one pocket instead of the other. Thank
you very much, sir.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Fisher. Members, any questions for Mr. Fisher? Hearing none,
thank you for your testimony this morning. Is there anybody else here that has not
testified that would like to testify? Now would be your opportunity to come forward.
And seeing nobody approaching, Members, without objections we're going to close
testimony for today's hearings.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Hearing none, we'll go ahead and close testimony .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, the Chair is just going to call for a two-minute recess, and we'll
reconvene at 9:30. We are in recess ... , (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

9:29 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:36 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: '" (gavel). .. Okay, Members, lets reconvene. Again as I stated earlier, we
have both the Director and Deputy Director of the Department of Transportation with us
this morning, Mr. Ginoza as well as Mr. Medeiros available. They are going to provide
us with some opening comments and then we'll get into Q&A.
And before I start with them, Director Morrison, do you have any opening comments for
this-MS. MORRISON: I don't.
CHAIR KANE: --session? Okay. Thank you. Members, any directional questions on where
we're going? Okay. We'll go ahead and start it up with opening remarks from the
Director. Good morning, Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: Good morning. Thank you for the opportunity to present our proposed budget.
Our budget is based on the implementation plan of the proposed five-year transit plan.
We are requesting three new positions to address the staffing needs. The plan
recommended the addition of four staff; however, we feel that myself and the Deputy
Director will be hands-on, taking on many operational responsibilities along with new
staff.
For salaries and wages, we are requesting two Transit Specialists to essentially assist with
administering and monitoring the public transit system activities; implementation of an
ADA eligibility process; educating the riding public; among many ongoing operational
functions.
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The third position is a Civil Engineer IV, tasked with infrastructure development.
Initially, bus stop signage implementation will be the primary focus. The plan estimates
that 400 bus stop signs and ride guides, ten information kiosks, 30 stand-alone benches,
20 shelters and two transit centers will be required by year 5. We have attached a
description of the task for each position.
According to several private consultants contacted, to produce location designs for a bus
stop sign with pole would cost between $500 and $1,000. The design estimates for bus
benches run from $500 to $1,200. The initial bus shelter design is estimated to cost
35,000 with subsequent shelters estimated at 10 to 15 thousand dollars. Based on this
information, we felt an in-house engineer would be more cost effective to design the
needed infrastructure.
The Department's budget for the services operated by Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.,
MEO reflects a 3 percent cost of living increase. Additionally, MEO has requested an
increase in two of their programs: first, the Youth Transportation Services program from
$58,000 to $134,740; second, the additional Transportation Services program increased
from $130,000 to two hundred fifty-six thousand, nine hundred, ninety dollars. Sorry.
The line items that formally named MEO as a grantee were changed to a more generic
title to receive Federal Transit Administration funding. Federal Transit Administration
funding requires a competitive bid process for identifying Federal grant recipients. In
order for MEO to remain eligible for line item grants from the County, the County and
MEO agreed that MEO will no longer receive FT A funds.
The budget reflects a continuation of existing fixed-route transit service at the same cost
for the current operator of Routes A, Band C during the first six months of Fiscal '06.
Commencing January '06, the Department budgeted to fund the operational plan as taken
from the five-year transit plan. The Department and MEO mutually agreed to put
Routes 1 and 2 in Central Maui out to bid for Fiscal '06; therefore, the Transportation
Services Line Item 917711 of just over $3 million contains 152,510 that should be
included in Item 917729 for Routes 1 and 2. The budget reflects a flat request for DOE
school bus transportation serVIces.
As of January 2005, we've paid out
40 ... (CHANGE TAPE) ...
Last year, DOE advised they would need the entire appropriation due to higher school
enrollment. A $197,000 request is included in the proposed budget to provide a
20 percent County match of FT A funding to purchase additional buses for the
implementation phase of the proposed five-year plan. We are requesting an additional
$100,000 beyond what is shown in our budget proposal.
This funding will allow for the purchase and installation of bus stop signage; route
schedule information signs; and public communications and information for the
development of the systems, logos and graphic schemes, route timetables, system maps,
and marketing.
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Typically, the cost of preparing public information is a routine operating expense;
however, the additional operate ... , sorry, the initial operation of the transit system
mandates a one-time significant cost for this effort. The equipment section of the budget
lists $1 million to continue the medivac helicopter, air ambulance program. The State of
Hawaii Department of Health discussed this program at the March 14 meeting of the
Council Planning Committee.
As far as grants, the FT A Section 5311, non-urbanized area from the program, the
Department plans to utilize these funds totaling $296,398 to support implementation of
the proposed five-year transit plan. If we receive these funds, they will be used to offset
the County funding.
Concerning the FT A Rural Transit Assistant program: we estimate receiving
approximately $30,000. The Department plans to fund training for maintenance
personnel; ADA driver improvement program; and customer service training for drivers
of the fixed route system.
Thank you for the opportunity to present our overview of the proposed budget. At this
time, we'd be happy to answer questions you may have. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Director. Members, at this time we'll go ahead and open up, and
the Chair was remiss in stating that we have an April 15 document, and Mr. Ginoza was
reading off of that in his summary or opening remarks. And then if, as you can see,
there's a lot of the attachments behind that for more specific information for, for you.
Hopefully, it'll help answer some of the questions that you, you may develop throughout
the discussion. With that, Members, we'll go ahead and open up for any questions.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Kyle, with regard to your opening comments in regard
to the grants, the FT A Section 5311, non-urbanized area funds of just under $300,000.
When would you actually know whether or not you're going to be receiving that money?
Would it be after we conclude budget?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: We know we will be receiving the money, but we just don't know when it lands.
For instance, the 2001, '02, and '03 FT A 5311 money didn't land until 2003, so two years
in arrears. So, we don't know when it will land, I doubt it'll land prior to the conclusion
of the budget session. It likely will be sometime in Fiscal '06, I'd say, it's, my guess
would be at least middle to late part of '06.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay and, but you've anticipated that in your budget that
you're kind of not counting on that, you're looking at the funding-MR. GINOZA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --except for the $100,000 for the signage?
MR. GINOZA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. With regard to some of the questions that were asked,
I know that some of the issues with regard to Corporation Counsel not responding in
writing. Is it my understanding that, because we, we just want to move forward and not
look back at what was done in the past, that, and plus also some potential ramifications
such as maybe losing all of our Federal funds if we, if someone at a Federal level deems
that we acted inappropriately, is that one of the reasons, you believe, that we're not
getting a written response?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: Possibly. You could ask Corp. Counsel that but possibly.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And which individual in Corporation Counsel has
been asked?
CHAIR KANE: We have, we have Mr. Moto here this morning, Ms. Johnson-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --to answer any of the, the legal questions, and I have been informed, and so,
we'll have to, again, play it by ear that if, if we go too far into certain areas that we may
have to go into Executive Session again for, you know, for the necessity of discussing it
freely.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And that's why I'm being very general in my comments-CHAIR KANE: Oh, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
--and not very specific. With regard to the actual
implementation of the transit plan itself, the Routes 1 and 2, which Ms. Baisa spoke
about, those will then be put out to bid? Is or will the current carrier be assuming those
particular routes just so that we don't have a gap in the service that's being offered?
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Mr. Ginoza.
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MR. GINOZA: For the Routes 1 and 2, we're actually going to put it out prior to the
implementation, put it out to bid prior to implementation of the five-year transit plan.
The way the budget is structured, we'd commence the five-year transit plan beginning of
the second half of '06, Fiscal '06, so January 06, but we have agreed with MEO that as of
the beginning of Fiscal '06, they will not provide the service. So, we, we actually put out
a bid for the operation of Routes 1 and 2 for the first half, well, for Fiscal '06.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: And yes, the Routes 1 and 2 will be folded or a deviant of it will be folded into
the, the transit or is folded into the transit plan.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah and I, and I appreciate you addressing that, because I
was just concerned about any interruption in service also, you know, is really an
inconvenience. So, thank you very much. I'll relinquish, you know, to someone else.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Ginoza.
According to the plan, they're recommending four positions, and you're saying you can
get by with three. So, is it your intention to stay with three and then eventually come for
a fourth position, say, next fiscal year?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: I thought that we'd first see, you know, what the, what the system would require
versus just getting the four initially. We start with three and see what kind of workload
that would generate and possibly next year go for the fourth if it was overwhelming. But
we thought, initially, that we could handle it with the personnel requested as far as, in
addition to the personnel we currently have.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And now, in terms of the goals for this transit plan
using the personnel, is it more to just address the immediate concerns right now with the
public transit system. or will these positions be utilized to look long term as well?
MR. GINOZA: It's both for the initial and, and long term, because if you look at it, what one of
the persons responsibilities would be kind of the, the data management, looking at, you
know, how we can improve certain routes or where we need more public information or
public outreach. And so, it's more of an ongoing thing where, you know, we need to get
out, get the word out and, and on a continuing basis.
As well as there's a need for, as I mentioned in the Planning Committee meeting,
complementary paratransit, where there's an eligibility requirement or eligibility criteria
to try to figure out who would be eligible to use the service, which would also be an
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ongoing thing. And that's some of the responsibilities for the other person as well as just
overall management of the system. But it's, it's an ongoing, long-term nature.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.

Further questions?

Mr., let's see, Mr. Mateo followed by

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Ginoza, in order, I mean, trying to
understand the five-year scheme, the five-year plan. The first year of service is
essentially Central, South and West Maui?
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second year is where?
MR. GINOZA: The same.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
service under your plan?

Same. And at what point does the rest of Maui island get

MR. GINOZA: Well, what happens is in the first and second years, it's, it's basically kind of an
expansion of the current areas being served.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Correct.
MR. GINOZA: The second year is basically to, is the same service as the previous year to kind
of make sure that people understand the system and get to know it.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And your fourth-MR. GINOZA: The third-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Go ahead, I'm sorry.
MR. GINOZA: Okay. Sorry. The third year we add additional service and like, for instance, we
add Up country and kind of minimally as well as some other areas. And then the fourth
year will be just a continuation of the third year. And the fifth year would be the more
extensive Upcountry and so forth.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And then at what year does the so-called Maui County
transportation service, transit plan become an actual Maui County service? Because
you're leaving out some areas of that same County?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
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MR. GINOZA: We, well, our consultants contacted people from the Neighbor Island, various
stakeholders and felt that, the stakeholders felt that the current specialized services that,
for instance, MEO provides is adequate for the, for the islands at the time being and over
the next five years. And that just a expansion of service of that, that type of
transportation versus having actual fixed route was all that's necessary for the, the
Neighbor Islands as well as the, the more rural part, parts of the Maui island. But the
plan does not reflect, you know, when the build-out will be, because it's past the five
years.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. And, and getting information on your
grants: the non-urbanized area form of the program as well as the Rural Transit Assistant
program. I mean, real briefly criteria for the securing of these monies? What's included?
MR. GINOZA: Who, who's eligible for the-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well, what's the criteria for being able to be eligible for the
funds for these two specific grants?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: Are you asking if the, who can receive it? Who may -COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I'm ask ...
MR. GINOZA: --'cause this, I guess, two levels of who's eligible, you know, who's eligible like
the County's eligible but who's eligible to be a sub-recipient of the County? Which level
are you asking about?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
criteria?

I'm asking, in order to qualify for these funds what is the

MR. GINOZA: Well, one thing is to be classified as non-urban, so it would be rural which
is -- 50,000? -- below 50,000 in a population center and to be providing rural
transportation.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: For both, for both grant requests?
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, they're the same? Okay .... (inaudible) ...
MR. GINOZA: There's, there's various other requirements, contractual requirements such as, no
geographic preferences; full and open competition; contracts not to exceed five years in
duration; and the Federal language has to be included in the operating contract.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So you know, if I would just say, you know, because
you're receiving non-urbanized funds and rural transit funds, that these two funding
sources directly should really provide you with opportunities of servicing rural
communities like Molokai?
MR. GINOZA: Sure. Molokai could be served with this funding.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Kyle.
MR. MEDEIROS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In regards to the transit plans, looking at your handout,
the one, two, three, fourth paragraph on the salaries and wages, you know, it does kind of
call for the third position as far as Civil Engineer IV, and you describe the plan as far as
what needs to be done. Is this the plan that was given to us, you know, at proposal levels
done maybe several months ago by the people that were contracted out to, to do the
transportation plan for Maui County.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Are we following that plan?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay and in regards to, one question, transit centers, you
show two of them, you know. Do you know the locations for those transit centers?
MR. MEDEIROS: Initially looking at it and, and pending on how the service will flush out,
we're looking at using Kaahumanu Center as a hub, and we'll be redoing the current
Routes 1 and 2, and the rest of the routes from the current systems that we're using now
will all pulse out of Kaahumanu, Queen Kaahumanu Center. And then once the service
evolves and gets on down the road, we're looking at possibly creating a transit center of
course you'd have to have the passenger use to back it up -- at North Kihei and
Honoapiilani Highway, that general area, which would be a crossroads for transit.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. And the last item that I have here is
in regards to the FTA Rural Transit Assistant program. It, it notes that the funds will be
used for training for maintenance personnel, ADA driver improvement program and so
forth. I'm under the assumption that the, the training will be for whoever the successful
vendor that is picked by the County of Maui?
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MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: Can I clarify?
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: Actually it's, it's both for the County as well as the contractors. So it's, you
know, but it's primarily the driver-training aspect of it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Good.
Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.

I was going to ask you that.

Okay.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Did Urbitran provide the Department with any alternatives to the one
proposal that was presented to, to the Committee?
MR. GINOZA: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, there's no alternative analysis for us to do to know that what
you're recommending to us is the right choice?
MR. GINOZA: Inherently, there are alternatives within the plan where the County can decide
whether or not to fund, you know, these routes versus those routes, and there are options
inherently in the plan. But it's, they, they selected the ones that, with our assistance, the
ones that they felt were right for the County to implement at those periods of time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But that's not their decision. That's this Committee and the Council's
decision. You know part of the problem is from some of the written responses we have.
You know you're asking us to go on 70 comment cards received from 45 residents,
25 visitors to embark on a plan that will, at one point in time, will take 86 percent subsidy
by the taxpayers, if I remember your plan correct.
I can tell you, now as a taxpayer, too, I refuse to pay that kind of subsidy for this kind of
program. And I've been hearing it from a lot of seniors, not in this group behind me this
morning but from many seniors who don't want to use their monies for 86 percent
subsidized program either. So, let's, let's get to the, the nuts and bolts of how we arrived
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here. Have you received from either the State or the Federal Government that written
letter of noncompliance-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --so we can move on from inferred information or allegations and
that we are in receipt of a fact or a statement?
MR. GINOZA: If, if you recall the last time I was in this Budget Committee, I'd requested that
the Committee ask me formally for that, that you want that kind of response. I still
haven't received something from this Committee. So, I've been working toward
compliance, and we are, we've been notified in writing that on May 19, the Federal
Transit Administration is going to come to the County to, to get to the bottom of this.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: To the bottom of what since there's no written communication?
MR. GINOZA: They, they did, they are cognizant of what is going on within Maui County,
based, and what peaked their interest was the, the news article -- I forget what date it
was -- but which The Maui News wrote about the compliance issues concerning the
Federal Transit Administration funding and charter services.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
So, your proposal to us is in response to this alleged
non-compliance? Is that how your short-term plan has been developed?
MR. GINOZA: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because I can tell you, you know, you guys go back to that
2002 KAKU study, which I think if I could I'd throw it as far as that trash can in front of
me. You know, I read it, full of holes. Obviously, anyone that has a driven position to
arrive at can address a study to reach that conclusion, which this is what I believe. I find
it interesting that you do not wait for a policy decision by Council to take your
determination on what transit program we really want to embark on and at what level
we're willing to pay for it.
I don't, did I miss something, Ms. Tavares? Mr. Chairman, if I may? I mean, I had, you
know, I was gone for a few weeks in Washington, D.C. Did I miss something about a
decision on a transit?
COUNCILMEMBER
TAVARES:
No.
Actually,
Mr. Chairman
in
the
Committee, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Hokama, during that, the Committee discussion it was
information gathering and that the decision to adopt any or part or all of the transit plan
would be done in the Budget Committee as we deliberated the amounts.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: So, no decision was reached about the plan.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that comment, I appreciate that, Ms. Tavares.
Well, I'm done, Chairman, 'cause I know how I'm going to decide on this request. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Should we implement the five-year
transit plan, after implementation and analyzation [sic], are we're able to, I'm sure we're
able to do some changes to see if the routes are not working right, did it, we take a look at
it and do the changes within the five year?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions? Ms. Johnson. Oh I'm sorry, Ms. Johnson, if I
can recognize Ms. Tavares? She hasn't had a chance yet. Thank you. Ms. Tavares
followed by Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Yes. Thank you. Mr. Ginoza, could you describe what the
routes are now -- A, B, and C?
MR. GINOZA: Sure. Route A -MR. MEDEIROS: Kihei only, yeah.
MR. GINOZA: --Kihei, it runs up and down Kihei through Wailea, so up from, every other run
it goes only up to the Maui Ocean Center area, you know, the Maalaea Harbor Village.
And it goes down through Kihei down to the Shops at Wailea. That's Route A, that's our,
our heavy, the most heavily used Roberts' route.
Route B is, connects to the communities of Kahului from Wal-Mart to Lahaina through
the Maalaea Harbor Village. So, it goes Wal-Mart to the Maui Ocean Center to the
Wharf Cinema Center and back.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: So, that connects Kahului to Lahaina through Maalaea.
And then Route C is from Kaahumanu Center to Wal-Mart through the Piilani Shopping
Village -- that's the one that has Safeway in Kihei off of Piilani Highway -- to the Shops
at Wailea. So, that basically connects Kahului to South Maui, the communities in South
Maui.
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COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: And the, do you know the approximate headways for these
bus, buses on these routes?
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. The, the Route A is one hour headway, and Routes Band C are two hour
headways currently. So, one hour round-trips and two hour round-trips.
COUNCILMEMBER T A V ARES: So, do you happen to also know how many pieces of
equipment are used per route, per day?
MR. GINOZA: One for, one for each.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Oh but then, they switch at some time.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: If you get one hour headway that's the same bus going ...
MR. GINOZA: Yeah it's actually a one hour round-trip, so it just does a loop.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. How, how do you propose to use the equipment that's
going to becoming in from MEO? The seven ...
CHAIR KANE: Defleeted.
MR. MEDEIROS: We plan on utilizing the larger units on Routes 1 and 2 as they are today.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: So, what result, oh I guess my question is, when you start
using this, will this result in a reduction on the contract, because now the buses are
County owned or County provided?
MR. MEDEIROS: The, the way we've put out the RFP, we've asked for two scenarios.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: One would be the cost without County equipment and one would be a cost
with County provided equipment -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: --to break it out to see exactly what would happen.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: And what's the, the timeline for that RFP response?
MR. MEDEIROS: It's due back the first week of May, I think it's the second or the third, next
month.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. When you originally developed the request for
proposal for the Urbitran study, what was the premise or what was your understanding
from this Council as to what was requested of that study, you know, and the resulting
RFP?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: Considering that the, I think the line item was to develop a five-year bus transit
implementation plan, we, we shaped the RFP to reflect, you know, something that was
implementable versus the 2003 KAKU study which didn't allow or didn't put, layout
what routes we wanted and so forth. And I mean, I disagree with the statements that
Mr. Hokama gave, where we, you know, we, they just wanted, or we just wanted them, I
didn't want them to just give us a bunch of different route scenarios and give this body
just, you know, here's 15 routes that you could fund if you wanted to.
1, you know, we specifically in the RFP asked them to use their, you know, our collective

expertise to try and develop what is best for Maui. I mean, definitely this body could
tweak whatever recommendation there is, but I didn't want to just give a, a basket of
options to this body and to the County.
So, we, we did work together with them closely to develop this, this system. And as I've
mentioned it, inherently, there are options, but I'd wanted them to come up with
something, that based on their expertise, what we could come up with for Maui, Maui
County.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Did they also look at what other Counties were doing
and possible options for owning or not owning equipment or you know other ways of
looking at this approach of how we might implement the program?
MR. GINOZA: We, we told them about the different Counties within Hawaii, and based on their
expertise as well as in different jurisdictions in the mainland, that's what's typically done
where the, the government, you know, the, the government entity owns the equipment
and based on, you know, so it's transparent who the contractor is. Because what you
don't want is for, you know, the, the riding public to be used to one contractor's vehicles,
and then they're not here, that the government changed contractors and a different bus
come along. So, for those jurisdictions that do not have their own staff actually driving,
you know, actually maintaining and operating the equipment that's more prevalent where,
you know, the, they don't just give the buses to whoever, that the, the ownership is
retained by the jurisdiction.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And my final question -- the data that actually went
into this study, it was my understanding that it was more than just simply the information.
It was other studies. KAKU had gathered some, I guess, ridership studies that had been
actual questionnaires that were handed out; there was also the information, I think, from,
I believe, a previous study, where we had done a transportation infrastructure workshop.
Was, am I wrong, was that not included in this?
MR. MEDEIROS: If I could.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes. Prior to moving forward with this we convened a group of what we call
stakeholders, transit professionals, people in the transit field and what not, and we called
it the Tram Committee. And we met several times starting in May of last year to: one,
review the KAKU study to see if there was merit there based on the studies that, the
surveys that they, that they initiated. They did several types of surveys, and the group
sort of went through all of that and revisited it. It also included information from a, a
previous study that was started in 2001, in the Fall of 2001, by the Council.
And it looked at some other studies that were done previously by Housing and Human
Concerns and the United Way, talking about community needs and what have you. And
this Committee pulled this all together, and then we moved forward with it and actually
had the Committee help us with oversight to develop the RFP and then finally get the
consultant on board and, and then move forward.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I appreciate you clarifying that, because all the way
through the process, because I was one of those individuals on the Tram Committee. It
was a compilation of a lot of different information, including some of the data that had
been gathered by the -- I believe it was Susan and I can't recall her last name - anyway,
through the transportation infrastructure workshop. So, I just, you know, Mr. Chair, I
know it might not appear that, that information was included, but that was always my
understanding, the support. .. (CHANGE TAPE) ... was a compilation of a lot of input
including I think the Focus Maui Nui. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Ginoza, of that
3 million Federal funds you have about roughly 150,000 earmarked for Routes 1 and 2,
the rest of the funds go towards .. .if you could help me refresh my memory?
MR. GINOZA: What 3 million?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. For the Line Item 917711.
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CHAIR KANE: What page are you? If you can provide us details, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I'm just going off of the, the information that was provided to
us by the Department.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, it's in the handout?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. It's in the handout.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It's on the, would be the third page -CHAIR KANE: Just so we can follow with you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --third paragraph.
MR. GINOZA: Okay. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: It's actually not 3 million in Federal funds, that's 3 million of County funds.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: County funds, I'm sorry.
MR. GINOZA: And so the 150,000 is the public trans ... , the Routes 1 and 2 portion. The
balance of that is a bunch of the specialized transportation, like the leisure program,
nutrition program, what else ... Ka Lima. It's a big, currently the big MEO grant. So,
like you ... , some youth services and so forth.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: I can provide the exact information later if you want.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay and then one last question. On that 82,000 for other
services, is that also tied into what you just mentioned or is that Other matters? It's in the
details on Page 17-4.
MR. GINOZA: That's our admin, I think.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sorry, Chairman, I know I'm going off of the handout.
CHAIR KANE: No. That's okay, Mr. Molina.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah. There's an increase from --
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CHAIR KANE: That should be a level ... the ... (inaudible) .. .is level across.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: --I'm sorry, I'm looking at Level 4.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's okay. We can scrap that question then. Sorry. Getting
behind here. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions for the Department at this time? Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Chairman, and for Corporation Counsel.
Those programs
Mr. Molina talked about, since it's our money, we can just provide outright grants then to
a service provider?
MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes. We were tasked with looking at whether or not
Federal and, in particular, Federal Transit Administration monies or Section 5309 and/or
Section 5311 monies could be used without full and open competition, in other words,
request for a proposal or competitive bidding type of process. And in that situation we
opined that the better approach, under the Federal Laws and Rules, would be to, to have,
to have the line item not provide a specific vendor, because that would allow the
Department to go through the RFP process. But in the event that we're only using County
funds, yes, we could, the County could provide that money as a line item to a specific
service provider.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Regarding the Federal funds and the RFP requirement to
have more than one consideration, can we legislate that all applicants must be a
nonprofit? They can be a private nonprofit.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Young, are you prepared to respond?
MS. YOUNG: Is, is this, with respect to FT A funds or?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah. So, like Roberts, you know, since they're one of the
drivers of this thing, can we have them create a non-profit subsidiary to do the bid?
MS. YOUNG: Let me answer it this way, under the Circular that got, that governs the Federal
Transit, which is promulgated by the Federal Transit Administration, in particular, this is
Circular No. 4220.1-E, under competition, it requires that, it requires that we, we comply
with fair and open competition. And that would include that we cannot provide
unreasonable requirements placed on firms in order for them to qualify to do business.
That, that is something that the FT A would consider to be unduly restrictive of
competition.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Why? Everyone is given the same opportunity to create a non-profit
subsidiary.
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MS. YOUNG: You know, I think that ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know why, Ms. Young, -MS. YOUNG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --you know for this Department to ask me, yeah, to consider an
86 percent subsidy, I'm not willing to pay for-profit at that kind of subsidy request.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions, Mr. Hokama? I'm sorry, I don't know if you're waiting for a
response.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I was, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Are you prepared to respond, Ms. Young?
MS. YOUNG: Yes, yes, Mr. Chairman. Basically, if, if we were allowed, if we had a basis, I
think what they're talking is about is unreasonable requirements. So, in other words, a
requirement that didn't have some kind of a rationale or something that was related to our
procurement of ... (inaudible) ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Eighty six percent subsidy is not a good rationale, Ms. Young? That
means it's running in the whole 86 percent.
MS. YOUNG: This would be a rationale for the limitation that only nonprofits could bid on the
services.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But anyone can have a nonprofit.
CHAIR KANE: Again, Ms. Young, the Chair is asking if you're prepared to respond to the
question. If you're not, then please state so, so we can move on with the-MS. YOUNG: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --discussion.
MS. YOUNG: Well, we would need more, more specifics in order to address that in a, in a
complete manner.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. Chairman.

Okay.

I appreciate your initial comments.

Thank you,

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions, Members, to Corp. Counselor to the Department
at this time? Chair has just a couple of them. Regarding the development of, under
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salary and wages on that second page, actually the first page of the handout since that
first page is a, a letter from the Director Morrison. That first page, salary and wages,
second paragraph under that section, where it starts the third position for infrastructure
development. Currently, and let's just use the example of Route, Route A, the Maui
Ocean Center to Shops at Wailea. This route runs along South Kihei Road?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes, sir, it does.
CHAIR KANE:
Road?

And how many, approximately, how many stops are made on South Kihei

MR. MEDEIROS: There are about 20 stops, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, on South Kihei Road, do they turn off into a parking lot like Azekas,
as an example, or do they turn off in Saint Teresa's Church parking lot? It's on South
Kihei Road?
MR. MEDEIROS: The, the only one that's not is when they go up to the Piilani Shopping
Village shopping center and the Shops at Wailea.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So all of those, so out of 20 there's 18 stops that stop on South Kihei
Road?
MR. MEDEIROS: And Maalaea. So there's-CHAIR KANE: And that's per one-way or there's 20 stops coming back the other way as well?
MR. MEDEIROS: You got it, that's correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So there's 36 stops round-trip on South Kihei Road or along the path
from Maalaea to south to the Shops at Wailea.
MR. MEDEIROS: Well, I ...
CHAIR KANE: So this position of the Civil Engineer IV, is it also going to be part of his task to
make turnouts, so that, 'cause I would assume, since you're saying that the stops take
place on South Kihei Road and this is a two-lane road, that every time that bus stops,
everybody behind that bus stops, and that all traffic on South Kihei Road, which has a
bus on it, is controlled by the speed of that bus?
MR. MEDEIROS: Not, not all of them. There are, we've, when we tried to locate it, we tried to
locate areas that had room to pull off on the side of the road.
CHAIR KANE: Legally?
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MR. MEDEIROS: Yes. Yes, to get out of the flow of traffic. There are a few areas where they
would currently block traffic but we tried to find areas. And, if I may, Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
MR. MEDEIROS: Where the road was improved towards Wailea and as you come back into
central, into the center of Kihei, the road is considerably wider and it allows for those
locations. But, but ultimately, I think, what we're looking at is in the future, as we
develop the various routes for the various locations, that these things will have to occur in
other areas as well.
CHAIR KANE: SO ...
MR. MEDEIROS: But using Kihei as an example, you're right. If we're going to start to find
out that certain stops have a very high usage we may want to put a shelter, and when you
start doing that you need to address the ADA concerns. And yes, you're going to need to
actually put in pull-ins or pullouts and sidewalk connections and various, the various
elements that-CHAIR KANE: And that's going to be part of the job of this Civil Engineer IV to create that
infrastructure-MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --or to at least plan it and then have, have it submitted?
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct, sir.
CHAIR KANE: So, currently on the, is the Route A running within the traffic, with the legal
requirements of traffic markings on the roadway as far as them being able to pull off in
areas that you've described?
MR. MEDEIROS: There, there are areas that are dirt that, you know, I think in the, in the, in the
best-case scenario should be a little better. There are areas that don't have sidewalks that
it's pulling off on and that people are using. And then there are other areas that, that they
are, that there is enough room with a sidewalk.
CHAIR KANE: Is there going to be money going to be requested later on for acquisition of land
for these, these pullouts? And just specifically for this route as well as for the proposed
routes that are within the plan-MR. MEDEIROS: That's a ...
CHAIR KANE: --that acquisition of land to ...
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MR. MEDEIROS: That's a, that's a possibility. We'll have to look at how much land the County
owns along the roadway and that it could be a possibility.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And that wasn't part of this five-year study?
MR. MEDEIROS: No. It was not.
CHAIR KANE: Would it, would you consider a necessary component of a five-year study to
incorporate that into the plan, so that we have an understanding of our requirements to
provide to the, the ridership?
MR. MEDEIROS: That, that sort of infrastructure is based on usage, so once the system, say,
gets up and running then you can determine the amount of passengers that are using those
stops. And that is sort of the trigger, as such, to, to work towards that sort of
infrastructural improvement.
CHAIR KANE: Is there a time frame that you folks have as far as being able to nail down
desirable stops both for the County and for the public as far as being useful and
maximized, time frame as far as actual development and in the ground and functional
infrastructural development? You have a time frame for that? On the existing routes
now, 'cause obviously you took, talking about in the plan expansion, eventual expansion,
Upcountry, which you would also need to look at-MR. MEDEIROS: Correct.
CHAIR KANE: --pullouts and shelters, etcetera.
MR. MEDEIROS: Right. With the, with the proposed plan once we up the services, then we
can look at how the traffic, how the traffic is responding to those stops. And that's when
we would start to develop a plan for those various locations.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. I'm going to change an area, Members, without objections? On, I think,
the question was asked about the seven active buses that are being defleeted and are
hoped to be defleeted by May 31st. Will these seven buses or, or are you planning on
incorporating them, and this may be a clarification question, but incorporating these
seven active buses into the routes and I think you said Routes 1 and 2 is where they're
going to be incorporated into? And they're going to be functioning from when, from
July 1 to December 31st to fill the gap, I guess? Is that what the intention is of the
Department?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. What about the other 21 buses? Any plans for that in the, the ramp-up
for the Department of Transportation's fleet? Any use of these vehicles? No?
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MR. MEDEIROS: No. None at all, sir.
CHAIR KANE: The 14, excuse me, the 14 before, between '94 and '96.
MR. MEDEIROS: No. Actually, from my experience, once MEO is through with them-CHAIR KANE: They're done.
MR. MEDEIROS: --they, they generally extend it pretty far out there.
CHAIR KANE: Well, I believe, in your presentation in the previous meeting, I believe, in
Ms. Tavares' Committee, it was noted in your presentation that the purchase of new buses
that you may able to receive them by early next year. And I believe, Director, your
comments were that although you've liked to shoot for a goal of January, that the more
realistic implementation time would be more towards March or April. So, how are you
intending to fill the gap between the January ending date or December 31 st ending date
of Routes 1 and 2, and having vehicles available to continue until new vehicles if, if that
goes through happens? Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: We actually with our contracts have it so that they can run until June 30 th of next
year, so for the full fiscal year. So that, in case the implementation of the transit plan gets
delayed a few months we don't have a break on service.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So these seven active buses are going to play that role ... (inaudible) ...
MR. GINOZA: For Routes 1 and 2?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: And so, you folks have already determined that these buses will be able to serve
for the full fiscal year as far as their condition since they were bought in 2001. So,
they're basically five, four year old buses, and I think you folks said that these buses will
serve in an increased capacity in these routes than over their normal function? I don't
know if that was what represented? Clarify, please.
MR. MEDEIROS: Okay. MEO has an excellent maintenance program and these are
medium-duty vehicles, so they'll be operating in the same mode that they currently are.
And should, so, we don't expect any, anything other than that.
CHAIR KANE:
Okay.
I'm ... Mr. Molina.

Chair yields.

Any, any further questions, Members?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Director, you know, right
now, I'm really wrestling with this issue of supporting funding for the three positions.
Which of the, which takes a higher priority for your Department in relation to achieving
the goals of the transit plan? Is it the hiring of the Civil Engineer IV or would it be the
Transit Specialist? In other words, what can we get by with for this fiscal year?
MR. GINOZA: With, well, with the implement. .. , oh, sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, sir.
MR. GINOZA: With the implementation of the plan with the, you know, the increased workload
in trying to get the ADA and the public outreach and the, just crunching the numbers, I
would say, it would be a Transit Specialist would, would take priority over the, the Civil
Engineer.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And we've been hearing from other departments the
difficulty about filling in the vacancies. What happens in the meantime? If, if say the
body decides to fund the Transit Specialist positions and you know there's no one there
that qualifies or you're unable to find people, what, what then? How do you still continue
to, I guess, try to meet the goals of the transit plans?
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Mr. Ginoza.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I know it's a difficult one.
MR. GINOZA: I guess ...
MR. MEDEIROS: You're right, and we've been talking to Personnel Services about that as well.
And what we would probably have to do is go out and go private, to seek private
consultants to do the, to create the things that we need to. When you look at the cost to
go out to private that's when we felt that it would be better to put in an engineer's
position. You're right, and there is a situation out there, so we have to be aware of that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. What happens to the revenue that is
generated for these bus routes, and if there's a difference between routes from the Kihei
or South Maui area, West Maui, and Central Maui? Or is it one fare takes care
everything?
MR. GINOZA: With the current system, we, we have, depending on to some extent, depending
on the route, it's different fares. And it would be a same, a similar thing for the, for the
new transit plan, where I think it was, I forget what the, the route structure is, but it's, it's
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in the plan, where, you know, for instance, if you go from Kahului to Lahaina, I think it
would cost like a dollar or two more than if you just stayed within Kahului. So, it is a
tiered structure as far as the fare. Is that your question or, or what happens to it-COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
MR. GINOZA: --like where does it go?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
MR. GINOZA: I'd like to defer to the Budget Director, Ms. Morrison for that.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Yes, Mr. Chair. Those ... 100,000 was projected to be the incoming revenue
for the, from the fare boxes; although, I think that's a conservative estimate from the
information I get. There's nothing in the budget proposal in the rates and fee section, yet,
to have a legal way for us to appropriate those funds. During the next few months, if
their budget proposal is approved and if we go forward with implementation of this plan,
we would need to create a fare, you know, appropriate category in the budget in the
revenue section of the budget to be able to receive and appropriate those funds.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The other question that I have is in regards to the public
utilities. Do we need to go before the public utilities to, I guess, to create these so-called
fees for transportation?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: No. We, we have a letter from the PUC that Hawaii Revised Statutes allows for
the Counties to operate a transit system, a mass transportation system that is not governed
by the, the Utilities Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: So, in other words, so if we raise the rates then the PUC
won't get involved?
MR. GINOZA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm sorry that I missed this,
'cause I know you already went over it but I was reading something. Route A is from
where to where? Not all the stops, just the general route. Is that Central Maui?
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MR. GINOZA: No it's ... Route A is just within South Maui, going from, most routes or half of
the routes go from what was Suda Store down to The Shops at Wailea with various stops
in Kihei. But every other run goes all the way to the Maalaea Harbor Village by the
Maui Ocean Center. But it basically terminates either in Suda Store or Maalaea Harbor
Village on the north end and Shops at Wailea at the south end.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I just want to know the route. I mean, you don't
need to tell me what the stops are. Route B is, is?
MR. GINOZA: From Wal-Mart to the Wharf.
MR. MEDEIROS: No. Route B is ...
MR. GINOZA: Route B is from Wal-Mart in Kahului to the Wharf Cinema Center in Lahaina
with one stop in-between at the Maalaea Harbor Village.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And Route C?
MR. GINOZA: From Kaahumanu Center to Wal-Mart to South Maui, so Piilani Shopping
Center or Shopping Village and Shops at Wailea. So, they're basically Kahului to South
Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Then, thank you, then one of the questions we were
trying to determine was the ridership. And on, in your handout, it's not numbered, so I'm
sorry, Members, but these are responses to the April 14th request. And it's towards the
back of the handout after this breakdown here, if you want to look. You're saying that
60 percent of the ridership of the current system are residents. And then you say that
there were 70 comment cards received.
Was this 60 percent derived from the
70 comment cards? Or was it ...
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes. And these comment cards were collected from riders
on their trips?
MR. GINOZA: Yes. On the three routes that Roberts currently operates.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, of that 70 comment cards can you break them down by
route?
MR. GINOZA: Well, we're not sure, we don't recall. Possibly. We, we can't recall at this
moment.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, this is a heavily subsidized program, and I, I
know it's meant to take cars off the road and to provide public transportation. But I
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would be a lot more inclined to support it if I knew that the ridership was primarily
residents who are trying to get to work rather than tourists, because you're asking for
public taxpayer dollars to support this. And from the information you're giving us, it's
not clear and it's, it's very difficult to, especially with the routes that you're citing. These
routes seem to be more convenient to the tourists than they do to the resident.
So, I know we asked for some substantiation on ridership, but I don't think 70 comment
cards is enough to give us an indication of, of the ridership. Route A is the South Maui
route, which is, by far, the bulk of the ridership. And one quarter, you had 10,600 riders
on Route A; and Route B: 4,800; Route C: 2,300. So, was, would there be any way of
knowing, getting a more specific idea for Route A as to who the ridership consists of?
CHAIR KANE: Are you prepared to respond?
MR. GINOZA: We could do a ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, Mr. Chair, I'm not interested in providing a
convenience for the visitor. I'm interested in spending taxpayer dollars to help the
taxpayers of Maui, and I want to see routes that are convenient to the residents. And I'm
not convinced by what I see that, that's what's happening.
I'm also concerned about the headway. And correct me if I'm wrong but headway means
the amount of time you have to wait for the bus. And if it's an hour, it doesn't make it
convenient for someone who's trying to get to work, who has kids to get to school and all
these various other commitments. And you gotta convince us that this money that we're
committing for a long-term project is going to actually benefit the residents and not just
be a further convenience to get the visitors around our island. Because if that's going to
be the case then somebody else should be footing the bill. You know, the tourist industry
should be footing the bill, not the taxpayers.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just wanted to reconfirm Ms. Morrison's comment. Where do
you -- and if you mentioned it, I'm sorry I missed it -- where does the current fares go
now, in what account, that is collected from the runs?
MR. GINOZA: May 1, may I answer that?
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: Would be ... well, as you know, MEO doesn't collect, or as you may know,
MEO doesn't collect fares on their Routes 1 and 2. That one is a 100 percent subsidized.
The Routes A, Band C as part of the, the RFP or as part of the contract, the provider
keeps whatever revenue is generated. That's their incentive.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But it needs to be through legislation that the Council appropriates
that money in that manner. So, what you're telling us is that they doing one illegal
activity, too, currently? They cannot do that, you guys cannot agree to that.
CHAIR KANE:
Corporation Counsel, are you prepared to respond to the question?
Ms. Fujita Villarosa.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, Mr. Chair, I'm not familiar with the terms of the RFP, but the
RFP could include as, I suppose, as part of the compensation of providing the services is
to retain the revenue.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Without Council appropriation and action?
You mean an
administrative department can make an appropriative decision? Is that what you telling
me this morning?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, let, let me take ...I'd have to look at the RFP because I don't
even know how it was, you know, how it, how it's structured. So, I would have to look at
the RFP first and see how it was structured.
CHAIR KANE: We'll have a question sent, Mr. Hokama, and get a, try to get a timely written
explanation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I want to know if Corp. Counsel signed off on that agreement, too,
Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: And we will pose the question. Members, the Chair sees the time, and I think
now is a good time for us to take our morning break. It's 10:41, we will recess until
10:55. This Committee is in recess. .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:42 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:02 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. Okay. Members, let's reconvene. Thanks for that break .
. . . (CHANGE TAPE) ... and a question that was asked regarding the fares that are
received, and I believe Corporation Counsel is prepared to provide a verbal response. So,
the Chair will allow that to occur. Ms. Fujita Villarosa.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Our understanding is that the current
existing program is, was awarded on a grant basis. So, it was a grant agreement and the
transportation program is the grantee's transportation program. It's not the County's
transportation program. So, that's why the grantee retains the fares.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Say that again, please. Okay like, the, the Council gave the
Department the money, and then the Department chooses to spend it according to how
they want to spend it?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, the, the, the Council appropriated the funds, and it was, it
was, must have been appropriated for a grant or to provide transportation services. And
so, the, the County executed a grant agreement with the provider with the, the entity that
provides the transportation services. So, we, the County is assisting this transportation
provider with their program. It's the, it's the, the transportation provider's program at, at
this time, my understanding is that it's their program. It's not a County program, it's
not ... the County doesn't own the buses.
I think in, I think if they're looking at it being done that way where it is a County, a
County program, actually, where the County would retain the fees and that's what the
Budget Director mentioned would have, we'd have to put something in place. you know.
as far as collecting the fees and appropriating the money out. But right now that's, that's
not the, the program that's in place.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Gee ... that's not my understanding of what we give money for. So,
the fares can change at, at will then, currently, since it's not a regulated. Well, it cannot
be at, at will because isn't that service provider needs to report to the Public Utilities
Commission, and the Public Utility Commission license service provider? So, wouldn't
they have to go to the PUC then for rates?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yeah I, the RFP might contain language with regards to rate
changes that, that I'm not, I don't know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can the Department respond?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: This program is not subject to the PUC, as I had mentioned to Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Why? It's not our program, she just said. It's the service provider's
program.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. Robert's got a response from the PUC that they don't, this program is not
of theirs. They don't have to report to the PUC for it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, who sets the fares then, Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. In, in the, we would ask them to, to create a fare structure as part of the
RFP, so that was the first structure proposed.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And how did they justify the fare amount to the Department?
MR. GINOZA: It was consistent with the, what was the current fare under the Akina system,
where the ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Obviously, that didn't work, right? So, they duplicating things that
didn't work under another provider?
MR. GINOZA: What didn't work?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The Akina program.
MR. GINOZA: Well ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, when they came to us in the succeeding years for more money,
more money just like this program in the succeeding years is going to ask us for more
money, more money.
MR. MEDEIROS: May I, Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: Member Hokama, what happened is that Robert's gave us a proposal and
used some of the elements of the previous operator. What changed was that under this
proposal with the current operator there is better connectivity to begin with, so that, for
instance, you can get off of one bus and get on another bus to get to a various location,
which wasn't as frequent with the previous operator.
So, the people using it, because this service is a bit more convenient than the previous
service, it has generated over two times or more the amount of passenger trips that the
previously existed. So, here came the revenue as well for that service. And then we
worked with MEO about the second or third month to tweak their system, the 1 and 2, so
that all buses would meet at Wal-Mart. So, you now had a system that you could, you
could, you could transfer from one to the other and get to where you need to go between
Central, South and West Maui.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that comment. I appreciate the, how you phrased it
. also, Mr. Medeiros. So, the increased ridership came from what sector? The visitor
sector? The resident sector?
MR. MEDEIROS: From what we see, and, and what the drivers are reporting is that a good
portion of the people are riding are from the, are from our local sector using it to go to
work or, or using it for services that they need, that they need to get to. That, that's why
in the, in the plan that we're proposing to you we're going earlier, and as
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Council member Anderson brought up, more frequency.
two-hour headway is kind of tough.

Because an hour headway or

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Do you know what would be, can you give us a, maybe, to be
fair, a range of what the fares would be to break even?
MR. MEDEIROS: Break even.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: To break even.
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh. Okay. I, I ...
CHAIR KANE: I need you to use your microphone there, Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: I, I ...
MR. GINOZA: Compare it to the MEO system.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
See and that's what I mean about the alternative analysis,
Mr. Medeiros. How are we to make quantitative analysis and judgments when, what I
consider, basic information for us, we don't have, not from Urbitran, not from KAKU, not
from your Department. What if we say, we will not fund a program over 50 percent
subsidy? What would the fare be then?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: What, how do you make the decision between 80, 85 percent, what is required
to, for the rationale to fund the 85 percent subsidized program versus 100 percent?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: '" (inaudible) ...
MR. GINOZA: I'm still trying to get what rationale you need for the public transit versus the
specialized services which is 100 percent subsidized.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's right. That's right. And for me, I can make that decision.
Okay. You want the decision, run for office. Sit in this seat with us. Okay. Since you're
not here you don't make the decision, we do, and that's the facts.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares. Questions?
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Yeah. I'm just going to say, while we talk about transit,
public transit all over the country, we know that there is no self-sufficient system that
runs and operates. But just because we always accept that fact, we do at some time need
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to see some numbers about what it would be to be self-sufficient, so that we know what
we're up against as far as the amount of subsidy. I think that's what Mr. Hokama is trying
to get at. And if it turns out being $10, $15 per trip then we need to know that kind of
number and so does the public, so that they know where their tax dollars are going. I
think that would be the helpful information that we need.
MR. GINOZA: Mr., Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. I think, you can derive what the cost per passenger trip is by looking at,
you know, if it's an 85 percent subsidy and you're paying a dollar fare, you know that it
would be roughly, what, seven times the subsidy. I mean seven times the fare.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: How did you arrive at the 85 percent subsidy?
MR. GINOZA: Based on the anticipated ridership, you know, they, the Urbitran team .. .I forget
what page it was but on one of the pages there is an anticipated ridership count, and then
above that is the, the, you know, the total subsidy required or maybe on a previous page.
So, you can just take the total subsidy and divide it by the anticipated ridership count to
get a rough or a propo ... , or an estimated ...
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Well, now that we have some actual numbers, excuse me,
I'm sorry, I didn't mean to interrupt.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Now that you have some numbers of what the ridership has
been, can you give us one formula, a breakdown of what it has been the, based on our
history, what that ridership cost would be if it were 100 percent self-sufficient.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair. If you, every, every quarter, as part our performance measures, we
added that as a, as a performance measure, the cost per passenger trip, both for the MEO
services as well as for the Roberts' routes. So, for instance for the Route A, the cost per
passenger trip, so this is basically the grant amount divided by the passengers. The cost
per passenger trip is just over $4 a passenger trip. For the Route B, it's, let's, let's just
take third quarter for instance: for Route A, it was $4.14; Route B, it was $8.86; and
Route C was 13.26.
COUNCILMEMBER T A V ARES: Included in the packet.
MR. GINOZA: I can, I can provide that.
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COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Are you referring to the program budget where you had these
performance measures? Oh, yeah. I found it. Okay. It's on Page 19-6.
CHAIR KANE: 19-6 of your program budget, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. So, it's 4.13 for, for Route A and 8.55 for Route Band
$12.68 for Route C.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's the one? Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions for the Department as it relates to EP count,
operations as well as the Urbitran five year, Urbitran study and their direction they want
to take us? Mr. Pontanilla
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Reading the handout, in 2002,
KAKU Associates conducted a survey -- this is back two years ago -- and the survey
sampling 401 adult resident, residents. When you look at the, I guess, graph that, Table 4
based on those telephone interview, majority of the people interviewed cited in every
case that traffic and transportation is a big need here in Maui County. And I find that
pretty interesting in the sense that on the 70 passengers that were interviewed on, I guess,
on the different routes, you know, there's a big difference in regards to the telephone
survey.
Have you ever conduct a new telephone survey to see where we at because of the, well
for one, I guess, the new prices are really skyrocketing. And you know it may cause a
different type of result meaning that when you look at transportation it maybe become a
higher priority than back two, two-and-a-half years ago. And the way, you know, we
looking at the Federal government, there's no end to the cost of oil in this present time,
and they even predicting that oil might go up as high as $100 a barrel.
So, with that in mind, if a new survey can be done, so that we can really know, based on
current conditions, if that survey would be a higher percentage regarding transportation
needs here on Maui County. So, my question to the Department if another survey can be
done to get current information from a telephone survey rather than surveying the people
that ride the existing bus system that we have.
MR. MEDEIROS: Those-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Medeiros, go ahead.
MR. MEDEIROS: --surveys tend, tend to get a little costly, so that, that would be, you know,
one issue. I guess the other piece of it is that your, you hit the nail right on the head,
Member Pontanilla. But I think, just from my experience, you can ask people
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conceptually about something, but it has to relate to me, you know, personally and how
does it affect me. And, and that's why when this plan, trying to put this plan together
with the earlier routes and the better frequency and the better connectivity, how will it
benefit me and my family, as such, I think is the question that we're looking to answer by
people actually taking money out of their pockets and paying for it and getting on a bus.
Even when we developed a system years ago, the Routes 1 and 2 in Central Maui, it took
us a little while, it took us a little over a year and that was free. And then, you know, it
started to really blossom. And trying to figure out why this happened, it appears that
people then saw that something was going to be there and it wasn't going to disappear.
And then, I think some family decisions could be made, you know, such as, do we buy
the second car or when the second car died, do we get rid of the second car and part of
the family would rely on what's now on the road? And, and we think, from what we saw
then, that, that appeared to be some of the things that were going on that people could
make real-life decisions as to, as to how their lives were going to run by utilizing public
transit.
And that's why we feel very strongly about funding this and actually getting that
equipment on the road and trying to learn by the mistakes of previous people and some of
the mistakes that we've made as we've gone along and some, using some of the input that
we've gotten from people as to, as to how this thing should work. And, and part of that is
the branding that it being out there, you know, and that, and that it be reliable and people
could count on it, so that they can make those family decisions and move it into the
future.
In, in a sense, Councilmember Hokama is actually, is very correct that it's your decision
to make as to how this system is going to run. And all, all we ask is that you allow us the
opportunity to develop this system and give us some time, and I'm not asking for eons,
but some time to see if we can develop it properly. And that as we come back to these
budget sessions, you all can say, hey, either you did a really great job and the people are
getting moved and things are happening, or hey, it's not working and we need to look at it
and what it is that's going wrong or maybe we shouldn't fund it anymore. So, when you,
we've worked with these studies it, it's, it, it's not going to answer the, the average
person's question is, how is it going to serve me, Council Member.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you for that answer and coming back to the
survey. I don't know if the survey was done throughout Maui County or the
concentration was only South Maui, West Maui and Central.
MR. MEDEIROS: They, they, that was done by SMS. KAKU Associates subcontracted to
them, and they made, they had to hit a threshold of about 400 calls, so they made more
than 400 calls and it was at random. So it was throughout, throughout the island of Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. I guess, well, you know, we're going to bite
the bullet and go through with this thing or you know if we don't go through this thing
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then it's going to be a problem for, I guess, people relying on public transportation to get,
you know, wherever they want to go. And yeah, you know, it's our decision to make to
fund this program and you know based on that, you know, do we take, I guess the, the
burden in picking up the cost providing public transportation or not.
So, you know it's going to be decision that, you know we're going to have to live with
and support once we decide on what we going to do. And looking at the survey, you
know, 75 percent of the people say that transportation is a big issue, public transportation.
And we really, you know, gotta act as, you know, responsible individuals to make sure
that we provide something for the people here in Maui County. We just can't build roads
all the time. You know if putting in millions of dollars trying to improve a, all the road
system today and then it's going to be tough. I thank you for your response on them, and
thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: One, one more thing. I think a gauge of the community's buy-in is when you
look at the, just the three routes that we're operating on Kihei alone. It's only been eight
months that we've had it on the road, but pretty much from the get-go, the ridership has
stayed constant, last quarter it built up a little. Between, just with the system that we
have now, between the routes that MEa has Central and the routes that we have in, in
Kihei and the connecting, we're, we're creating 12,000 passenger trips a month.
So, there are people using it with the limited schedule as Member, Members pointed out
earlier and the lack of convenience as such. But it is working for some people, so we're
hoping with the increase of convenience and services that it'll attract more riders.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you describe for me, specifically, the routes taken
for MEa's Route 1 and 2?
MR. MEDEIROS: MEO's Routes 1 and 2 were designed to hit all the low-income housing, hit
all of the government, post offices, shopping centers, was set up to attempt to connect this
Wailuku-Kahului communities. Is that, is that what you're asking?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I guess. So, it stays, Route 1 and Route 2. How are they
different?
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They both stay within Central Maui?
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MR. MEDEIROS: Okay. I got you. One route, if I could put it one way, goes from left to right,
the other one goes from right to left. That's about as simple as I can put it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And what's the headway on those routes?
MR. MEDEIROS: It's about two hours.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And currently, MEO does not charge a fee for this, so and
it does specifically serve low-income folks. So, when you guys take this over we're
exposing these riders to fares that they wouldn't currently be, be paying. Do you have
any idea of what they might be and, and will they have to be comparable to the other
routes that you're doing in order to be fair? How, how is the fee structure going to be set?
MR. MEDEIROS: We are looking at charging a dollar a trip as we have in the other local runs
like in Kihei.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions, Members? The Chair has just a couple of
questions. Has the State gotten back to us with respects to a more accurate figure for the
air ambulance service since that last discussion we had in Member Tavares' Committee?
They stated that they were close to providing a more accurate number, and more on the
$800,000 range versus the million dollars that we have posted here. Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes, sir. I have an e-mail from Donna Maiava, who was here. And their
thought at this time was that they need, the State was going to pick up half of the cost for
the Kula ambulance crew, so that they felt that our cost would be $250,000, so that's over
the 611 at this point. I, I don't have that confirmed by the Director or anyone, so you
know you're looking at eight-CHAIR KANE: Sixty-one, five-MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --and some change there. Are they going to provide us something in writing
with an actual dollar amount at the end.
MR. MEDEIROS: We, we ...
CHAIR KANE: and when?
MR. MEDEIROS: --we have asked them for that and the other piece of that also is that the
Legislature needs to approve this. It's my understanding that some of the legislators are
not in favor of that, that.
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CHAIR KANE: As far as the overall program?
MR. MEDEIROS: The scenario, the scenario of the County picking up half of the personnel
costs for the Kula ambulance crew.
CHAIR KANE: Can you tell us what they are in favor of?
MR. MEDEIROS: No, not at this time. I don't have that information.
CHAIR KANE: Are they ...
MR. MEDEIROS: I ...
CHAIR KANE: Is it your impression that they want the County to pay all or nothing?
MR. MEDEIROS: No. It, the impression that I'm getting is that they, they want the County to
continue with the 611 and not fund any portion of the Kula ambulance crew.
CHAIR KANE: And just for clarity, the County funds no other ambulance crews throughout the
County is that correct?
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. The other question I have is and the Chair apologizes if I don't have that
breakdown, but just help us for clarity. On the comparison document, which looks like
this, Members -- it's about halfway through the handout, there's approximately a
$1.3 million difference, almost 1.4 million under public transit program; and then the
public transit program figure for '05 is 500,000; and for '06 is the 1,882,719.
Do you have that itemized in this handout since you handed it out this morning, so we
haven't had the opportunity to fully absorb everything that's here? Is there more of an
itemized breakdown of that? It's all within details or is it just one lump that we're going
to be looking at and relying on you to provide those more details.?
MR. GINOZA: I can provide that information. I don't think we, we included in this handout,
but I can provide that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, without objections, the Chair is going to request for that
additional breakdown, so we understand where that additional 1.3 million or almost
$1.4 million is going.
The other one would be with respects to the Civil Engineer IV position. Would you be
able to provide an estimated cost for design of with a private contractor if this position
were not considered?
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MR. GINOZA: It was in the opening statement.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and so just point, if you can, please, just point that out.
MR. GINOZA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: The dollar amount, yeah.
MR. GINOZA: Okay. Oh, point it out now or in writing?
CHAIR KANE: Do you have that, just point it out what's in your opening statement.
MR. GINOZA: It's, it's in the fourth paragraph, oh sorry, third paragraph under salaries and
wages, the second section.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay. Thank you. Okay. So, we'll go ahead and get that totaled out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: One second, Member Anderson, let me just finalize that one thought that I was
trying to get before I lose that. Okay. One million. Okay. Ms. Anderson, thank you for
yielding. Go ahead. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, did I make you lose your thought?
CHAIR KANE: No, I ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I know how that works, which is why I interrupted you
'cause I didn't want to lose my thought.
CHAIR KANE: No problem, go ahead, go ahead. I found where I was, and I can ask it after
you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Just because you were on that topic I wanted to
follow up. You know we've heard from various departments in the County that, that
engineers are very difficult to come by, and so you're going to be competing with the
Water Department and various other departments in, in trying to get an engineer on board
to do this. And because these are all things that need to be done up-front for this system
to operate smoothly, do you have a Plan B?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes. We would have to go out and, and hire a consultant services provider,
and we just felt that to be fiscally responsible we had to ask for that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And this in-house engineer, once the system is set up and
they have provided the infrastructure necessary, what then will that engineer be doing? I
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mean, the infrastructure is going to have to be up and in place for this system, the bus
system to operate effectively. So, I'm assuming that it's going to be ... his job task will
be taken care of sooner than later within this program. Can you clarify?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah. Initially, what you're going to attempt, no it, it won't be fully built-out.
I guess that's the best answer before we start. What you're going to attempt to do is to try
to get the bus stop signage up first, do some of those issues prior to rolling buses on the
road. When we start looking at the kiosks and all these others things, it'll be based upon
usage, and ultimately if we're going to build any kind of a transit hub terminal that, that'll,
that'll be down the road. Of course, we need to start to work on that plans, but we
wouldn't even come close to asking for that until we could substantiate it with passenger
counts and a need for it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, the engineer, aside from getting up signs and benches
after that's done and, and there is shows, there, there is demonstrated need
that. .. (CHANGE TAPE) ... a hub terminal.?
MR. MEDEIROS: If you recall, this is a phase-in plan, so we'll be doing different, different
communities as we move along. So, this is going to be some ongoing of the first year in
the third year and some of the things that we did in the first and second year in, in the
fourth years, as well, as this thing progresses. And, and just from an engineer's, what has
to occur is on a County roadway if you're going to put in bus signs or whatever you're
going to need to have, say, a blueprint of the roadway. And they have to work off of that
to show where that, that will be located, so that it is, it is safe, you know, for the driving
public. So, those are some of the things that'll need to be done, so for every road that
we're going to work with they're going to need to develop these things. And then we'll
have to give it to the Engineering Department to look at and then it goes to the Highway
Department, you know, ultimately, to put up signage.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, you anticipate this being a full-time position for
perpetuity, I mean, a need for it in perpetuity?
MR. MEDEIROS: We look for it as a need as far as we can see in this five-year plan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think it is general discussion couple years ago, when the Charter
was amended, creating the Department of Transportation, Chairman, and so I had
referred it. Public Works is still the Department tasked to with the, their famous words
that Mr. Lee used to always remind us, plan, design, build and maintain the County's
highway system. DOT is to coordinate planning efforts with the other departments. See,
this is a way to circumvent the Charter and put engineers in DOT instead of where it's
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supposed to be under Public Works, I have a problem with that, and if you guys want to
do it, change the Charter.
My question on this round, though, Chairman, is on the current budget since the RFPs
went out, what is your Department's anticipated savings or if we'll expect full
expenditure of all, all your funds for the current fiscal year?
MR. GINOZA: Based on the RFP ... oh, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: In your whole Department's budget, Mr. Ginoza, you folks ... you
folks plan to expend your full allocation of appropriations? Or you feel that you're going
to have savings in general fund, savings in highway fund and if so, in what specific areas
-- administration; contract services; transit program?
MR. MEDEIROS: The majority of the funds in the Department go out to grants. So, we expend,
expect all of that to be spent-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. That's fair.
MR. MEDEIROS: --and we look at about 197,000 carryover.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: In what, in what general area, Mr. Medeiros?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'll have to get back to you with the specifics. I got
that figure this morning, but I can respond in writing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman. I will await their, the written
response. The school, DOE program, the 151,000 from general fund, one, has the State
Department made any adjustments to this program since we've been made aware that
some of the subdivisions that are being constructed are asked to pay a whole various
range of, of so-called school fees or impact fees from like $500 to $5,000? Is that used,
do you know if that is, that is used to help this type of program since now they collecting
revenues from new development?
MR. MEDEIROS: Member Hokama, I'm not sure how the DOE allocates those funds, but for
this particular program they haven't indicated in either direction. In fact, what they told
us is that about two years ago, the, the paid ridership tapered off from the school bus
routes, because they offered free bus service to those children who also received free
meals to try to assist with that. And so that their paying ridership fell off a little although
the amount of children going to school increased. They are anticipating increases, but it's
going to be hard to tell, but what DOT is, DOE is looking at is instituting a mandatory
prepaid bus pass system, and they're planning on implementing that in the fall of this
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fiscal year, which will help them to get a better handle on, on where you're going with
that question to try to figure out what's needed here.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And I'm only going to say is, I'm assuming like this, our
County, they had increased expenses, is it also going up? Their expenses in general is
going up like everyone else's, yet the amount is the same, so I'm thinking, well. maybe
they got some monies from different sources, so they can maintain their request amount.
When you share with us that comment that those students that qualify for free lunches
also now provided that free bus transportation service, that is irregardless of the distance
from the school?
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh, no. It's, it, excuse me, it still has that, that caveat that you have to live -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So many ...
MR. MEDEIROS: --within, I think, it's a mile.
MR. GINOZA: Over.
MR. MEDEIROS: Over a mile, not within, over the mile. That hasn't changed at all.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And that is anticipated to be fully dispersed by the end of the
budget year?
MR. MEDEIROS: It doesn't look like it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, can we make an adjustment in that account?
MR. MEDEIROS: I guess, I, I guess you probably could. When you look at the track record
that we have of this, we've been trying to get funds and they've, they've had a change in
how they do business, and, and so we've had a little difficulty But I, I would think that a
best guesstimate is if you remove 50,000 from that, you know, although this year so far
through December, it's 41,000-and-some-change, so it'll be tight. But we have a 151, so I
would assume if, if we could get 50,000, you know, you could deduct it, you know, that,
if, if we're that tight. It might, it might, I mean if we run over we'll have to come and ask
for more money if that's the case. It's, this is a hard one to tell; it's a hard one to judge.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: I'm sorry for the lack of information.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no. I appreciate your comments, Mr. Medeiros. Can you tell us
why that $6,000 for the Lahaina tutor project, which, to me, helps, you know, we've,
we've been given, we've seen the children that participate, and we have seen the progress
that the program provides them. So, couple questions, why is it under the administration
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of one when it could have maybe be part of the overall school bus transportation service
area or the youth transportation program area? Can you give us a comment?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair. The Lahaina tutor project communicated with, with our office
recently and indicated that most of those funds are not transportation-related that go to
their program. It's mostly materials and supplies and a small portion of it is related to the
transportation. And they requested that we place their grant, should it be supported, in
the Department of Housing and Human Concerns, where they feel they're better, a better
fit.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for saying that. I, I misread. I thought it was
move from HHC then, okay. Okay. Thank you for that update. My apologies.
MS. MORRISON: The Council had placed a proviso on the '05 budget providing that 5,000 go
for that project.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. This reimbursement, can you, it's a deceiving term. So, I see
this is going to be one expense, right, this reimbursement? So, this is paying back money
already expended on our behalf? Is that a correct way to look at that request?
CHAIR KANE: Director.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
I'm
looking
$212,000 approximately, Mr. Chairman.

at

that

baseyard

reimbursement

of

CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Medeiros.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Medeiros, are you prepared to respond?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes. Back in '94 or so, MEO was successful in getting Federal monies over
to the County, County Planning Department, specifically, to look at a new location for its
bus facilities, and that was in Puunene. And then that sort of evolved and what have you.
The County of Maui, in executing a contract with MEO to do planning and design for
that, which MEO did many years back.
The issue to try to get into that site at the old Puunene Airport was always with the
roadway, and that State Department of Transportation, you know, was going to improve
Mokulele, as we're doing now. So, it was always the, the intent to go there and to move
there, but it was contingent upon the, the roadway.
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Well, a lot of water has gone under the bridge as such and MEO chooses to go in a
different direction and not a different direction but another location. So, they need to
have the money to do the planning and design. And so, there was never a Federal grant
with the County, you know, to do this, it was always hung up on the roadway.
So, the Administration feels that, you know, MEO has done what they said they were
going to do, they fulfilled their, their grant as to what they were to supposed to do. It's
been hanging out here for like nine years and they need to move forward. And so, it's
best that we just, let's get, let's assist them and pay them for what, for their work done
and, and we'll move on.
We will attempt to work with the Federal government to get the money back to the
County to sort of repair, repay what we've put out for this. And, and the Administration
feels that with the Council support that this will help them move forward.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this the full amount and then we kind of zero-out the balance sheet
or is there additional requests later?
MR. MEDEIROS: Well, this is what they've expended.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So this would zero-out this 212 -- rounded out -- thousand
dollars.
MR. MEDEIROS: Right. Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And my next, my new question and maybe you can, you can
you have that institutional knowledge, yeah, which is very useful, Mr. Medeiros. Was
the highway fund considered as a source to do the reimbursement? And remember, she
said, how was the general fund chosen to be the source of the reimbursement?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: It was the Mayor's request that it be from general fund that we request the
Council appropriate the funds from real property tax revenues, their excess revenue that
we'll find out tomorrow in the certification.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No. 1, I just thought that was important to know, because
we've been asked to review certain portions of the highway fund and certain revenue
sources regarding certain types of taxes, like gas tax, to reduce; and yet, in some areas,
the highway fund is not capable of taking care of all of its expenses. So, thank you,
Chairman. I just needed to understand that better.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Questions? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And you may have already answered this, but I didn't catch
it. Under the budget, that would be on the actual first written page of your summary,
youth transportation services and additional MEO transportation services program, those
together went up roughly $228,000 combined. Is this because they want to expand or is
this part of the fact that they're not getting subsidized any longer from the Federal
money? And if you could just explain, because I can understand the expansion of the
routes, and I can also understand with the gas going up. But I just would like an
explanation and to clarify whether it's part of this funding that they're no longer going to
be getting or if this is totally separate?
MR. MEDEIROS: Our understanding, based on what MEO has given us, it's, it's expansion
request that they've, they have been working with community groups to, to, to address.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Ms. Johnson, would there be a request from MEO to
provide us with a breakdown of their expansion -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think that -CHAIR KANE: --if they haven't already provided?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --I think that for the public's purposes, yes, this would be
very good to just kind of know where their costs are going. Because I know that there
have been a lot of requests, we've heard a lot of requests on the budget trail, so I, I think it
would be helpful just, you know, for our purposes if they could do that. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And they're here this morning, but we'll send them something and they'll
provide something for us in writing -MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: --and they know that they need to be timely with that. Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: We have that breakdown, so ...
CHAIR KANE: Why don't you go ahead and pass it on to us then -MR. GINOZA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --and we'd appreciate that.
MR. GINOZA: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions Members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One last one.
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does the Department know when the State's standard two year
program review cycle is going to, is going to occur next for Maui? You should know
this, Mr. Medeiros, you've been with the transportation industry for awhile. Every, you
know every two years, generally, the State does their program review and then it would
be Maui's turn. So, when would be Maui's turn next in the program review?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: You're talking, excuse me.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Talking about the things like MEO, what MEO does or anybody else
does, we do. Do you know when the next scheduled review cycle is from the State?
MR. MEDEIROS: They do that every year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's a annual, annual thing?
MR. MEDEIROS: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: It's an annual, it's an annual occurrence. The next occurrence ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So the, so when is the next occurrence?
MR. MEDEIROS: Probably, they usually do it in the fall.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is that coinciding with the what the Director stated earlier
with the Federal review?
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh, oh no. That's separate. That's, that's done by FTA. The last time they
did it was 2000. Previously, I believe it was '95, '95 or '96, so it's about every five-year
cycle for the FT A monitoring.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But the State does their annual monitoring.
MR. MEDEIROS: Annual. Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Which they have done for as long as you can recall?
MR. MEDEIROS: That, that is correct, sir.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and we never did have any management letter, statements or
concerns brought up prior from those annual program reviews?
MR. MEDEIROS: I haven't seen anything in writing on that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your response.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, the Chair has received just some information that I can share with
the Members, that Ms. Tsumoto from the State Department of Transportation and the
State Planner has communicated to MEO, more specifically, Ms. Baisa, with respects to
the comments that were made earlier by Director Ginoza, that there is going to be a site
visit tentatively scheduled for Thursday, May 19th, to discuss specifically the Elderly and
Persons With Disabilities program or the 5310 program. And that the FTA is conducting
a State management review of, of the State Department of Transportation, and so MEO
has been selected as one of the components of that process to be reviewed. So, that's
something that's connected to the opening comments of the Director.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. One more question for you. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Since we, we've talking about the Federal government and the
Federal Transit Authority, the Senate hasn't made a final decision on the reauthorization
bill, as I understand it. So, is there some concern for us regarding potential funding for,
for certain programs that we participate in, or, or you see a status quo situation for us?
MR. MEDEIROS: I guess, down the road, we should be concerned, and I think we, we have
about little over $4 million in the funding stream already that we'd like to chow down and
cumber for various projects that we've talked about. And so who, who's to know where it
goes as far as the Federal government was concerned.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, and one more ... (inaudible). .. Is your Department, what is
your Department's role, if any, with the North-South Collector Road, please?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: We have, we have no ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Participation or, or ...
MR. MEDEIROS: Well, just some information as an administration.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your comment.
MR. MEDEIROS: Chairman, if I may ...
CHAIR KANE: Further comments, Mr. Medeiros?
MR. MEDEIROS: Towards Mr. Hokama's question, I think one of the things, as a body and as a
government, we need to look at is, it is highly likely by the next census that the
Wailuku-Kahului area will hit the 50,000 threshold of, of people. That I know how
budget-minded you are, Member Hokama, and this is where by that next census if, if the
growth that we're projecting in the central area here occurs, we will most likely hit or
exceed the 50,000 level, which then would open up additional funds, which are only
being received by the City and County of Honolulu, the metropolitan.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's correct.
MR. MEDEIROS: So, that's, just wanted to remind you, I figure, you know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Thank, thank you for that comment, I appreciate it. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank, thank you, I'd just follow up on Member Hokama's
inquiry about North-South Collector Road. You folks have no participation in that at all?
That's a question.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: No. As was brought up to us, I think, during last budget session, in the Charter
we're not tasked with planning, designing or maintaining roadways. So, we don't, we
don't playa role in the North-South Collector Road. We participate in discussions but for
informational purposes only.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I'm looking at the Charter and it says, be responsible
for the planning and implementation of all modes of transportation in Maui County; be
responsible for planning and developing an efficient program to facilitate the rapid, safe
and economical movement of Maui, of people and goods in Maui County; and to
coordinate Maui County's transportation programs with other County Departments. So,
doesn't say anything specific about public transit program. It talks about all modes of
transportation, an efficient program to facilitate rapid, safe and economical movement.
There seems to be a real problem with the North-South Collector Road getting, getting
advanced. And what specifically is your Department focusing on if it's not interfacing
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with Public Works or any other agencies regarding transportation? Is it right now .. .I
mean, I can appreciate trying to get this program off the ground, probably takes most of
your time but is that the focus of this Department?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: Primarily, at least for the last, what, six months, or so its been primarily the
public transit. We've also been dealing with trying to get Federal, Federal Transit
Administration monies to improve our ferry system in the harbors as well as various other
functions. But if you look at, getting back to the North-South Collector Road, what we
have been advised by Corp. Counsel is that if you look at the Charter specifically in the
Department of Public Works and Environmental Management, because it more explicitly
states that they are to plan, design, build and maintain the County's highways that, that
really governed what, that they basically looks over the highways versus even if there's
somewhat of a duplication in the Charter with our Department that, that was a lot more
explicit and, therefore, was under their jurisdiction. So, because we didn't want to
duplicate resources, we don't, we spend very little time on the, the highway aspect of it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm going to have to go back and look at the Charter,
because everything that was said about this when we put it forward was my
understanding that this agency was supposed to assist and focus primarily on
transportation issues. So, and Public Works seems to be over. .. , overwhelmed with
everything having to do with Public Works. So, I was hoping that we could, with this
new agency, see some assistance in Public Works in, in trying to get the roads, that we
have budgeted over the years getting built, you know, as a program. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further questions, Members? If you do have
any further questions, again, we're going to go start deliberations at the end of this week
and into next week, so if you do have any pressing questions, it would probably be
quicker if you sent them directly to the Director of the Department, at this point, to get a
personal response, or I'm sure they'll make themselves available to you with a phone call
to provide any specific clarity that you need to help you with our decision-making that's
going to be coming up.
Members, the Chair is going to close it up with the Department of Transportation this
morning. We'll take a lunch break until 1 :30, and then we'll come back and we'll meet
with the Director from the Office of Council Services, Mr. Ken Fukuoka, and have a
discussion about the Office of Council Services. Members, it's 12 o'clock. This
Committee stands in recess till 1 :30. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

12:00 p.m.
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RECONVENE:

1:37 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... {gavel}. .. The Budget Finance Committee meeting for the 18 of April
2005. With us this afternoon, we have Mr. Ken Fukuoka, the Director of the Office of
Council Services and with him we also one of the resource personnel to assist him in
responding to any of the questions you may have regarding this budget operation,
Ms. Jean Yokoyama.
Members, directing your attention to a couple of documents. First, in your details we're
on Page 3-1, and moving through Section 3 in your program, you're in Section 5 and that
moves throughout in that section. And you have a April 18, 2005 memo from the
Director to the Members of this Committee. And if you have any questions, we'll go
ahead and take those questions once we finish with the opening comments and
presentation from Mr. Fukuoka. Any questions, Members, before we begin? Hearing
none, Mr. Fukuoka, good afternoon.
MR. FUKUOKA: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair. Ken Fukuoka, Office of Council Services. In
February, I, I distributed a memo which outlined the major or the larger changes in the
budget for our office. And today, I'm leaving, well, I, I left a memo on your desks. This
deals with any updates since February. The, the major element that is, is different is I'm
proposing to move the computer function into the Administrative Support Section. And
so, I guess you might want to know what the trigger and benefits and problems are. I had
an outline attached to today's memo, it's triggered by the wish of the incumbent in the
Supervising Council Services Clerk position to retire. She is willing to phase out at least
as of this point, but she, she does wish to retire.
For some time now, I've been concerned about the computer section. There's one person,
primarily, who deals with the computer function in our office, and she is in the Research
Section. I think there is a need to provide some assistance there, primarily, because the
system that we have has become more complicated over time and more difficult to
maintain when she's out of the office. It's very difficult to provide the backup services
that are necessary to keep it running. So, I think it's important to, in some fashion,
provide an assistant.
Now, the problem is to provide an assistant and still maintain the relatively flat
organizational structure that we try to maintain in our office ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... we
would have to set her up in a separate section, and that section would only have two
people. When you have only two people, it becomes very hard to provide the necessary
redundancy to provide reliable delivery of service. In addition, in order to do this we
would take one position away from the Administrative Support Section. That would
leave only three in that section, and they would have problems covering each other for
long-term leaves and training and what have you. So because of that, I'm trying to
combine the two sections or the two functions.
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It, it isn't as odd as it may sound, you know, the functions are not as dissimilar as they
would have been 20 years ago. And the reason is that just the ordinary functions of our
offices are very complex now. Just the Xerox machines, if you've ever looked at them
recently, are not anything like what used to be, and our telephone systems, even the
telephone systems are very complicated things. They're all run by computers now, to
some degree they're even connected to computers, our Xerox machines are connected to
computers to our system, our computer system. So, there is a consistency in the sense of
the infrastructure of our office just becoming more and more complicated and melding or
converging into Information Technology in general.

Now, that doesn't mean that it's going to be an easy transition, and, and one of the reasons
why it's taken me so long to, to come to the point of making this proposal is because no
matter what we do there are going to be problems caused. In this particular case, if we
consolidate the functions in the Administrative Support Section then it's an enormous
change in the scope of the section. And there's going to be adjustments that are going to
have to be made over time. Initially, it's going to be difficult because essentially you're
minus a Supervisor. A Supervisor that was there before will no longer be there, and at
the same time, we'll have to be accelerating, accelerating our effort to hire that assistant
IT person, Information Technology person. So, it is not without risk but it is the best that
I think that we can do right now.
On the compensation side, this would involve switching the current Supervisor of the
Administrative Support Section over to a technician type of work, an IT technician type
of work. Not that the incumbent would be there, in fact I'm hoping that I'm going to be
able to continue her on a part-time basis for a while, so that we can transition into this
more smoothly. But in order to have somebody who will be able to manage this overall
operation and not only what the administrative services, I'm sorry, Administrative
Support Section does right now but also this IT function, I'm, I'm requesting a higher pay
level for the Supervisor there. There are another, I mean, there are some other minor
changes in the budget but those are very minor. I think they more or less zero out, but
that's the main change that I have. Maybe I can stop there.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you've heard the opening remarks from the Director. Are
there any questions?
And let's first, if there are any questions regarding the
computer-related functions and the transfer of those responsibilities into the, the Support
Section and consolidation. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Ken. This is a lot to
take in, and I, I have not had a chance to read this. So, I'm just going to ask questions
based on what you, what you said. And basically, I want you to clarify, if I have an
understanding of what you said, that the Supervising Council Services Clerk position
would be done away with and it would be replaced with a Council super. .. , Services
Supervisor position.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that position would be responsible for everything that
the Council Services Clerk position was responsible for as well as supervising a
Computer Technician?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes. The Council Services Supervisor position would be covered. Those
functions would be covered; in addition, there would be a supervisory responsibility over
the technician, the new technician position; and of course, there would be a continuing
delivery of services for the Computer Administrator. You know that position would no
longer be there, so.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The, the current position we have now for, well, Martha's
position, that position would no longer be there?
MR. FUKUOKA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And instead we'd have a Computer Technician?
MR. FUKUOKA: No. We'd have, actually, what I'm hoping is she would transition into the
supervisor position and that we would hire another position, because Frances would
retire. We would hire another position to focus on computer-related work, but I have to
emphasize that, you know, it's a focus on computer-related work that we're talking about.
Because to some degree there's going to be a mix of functions among the people who are
left in that Administrative Support Section. And they're going have to be covering each
other in different ways. It's going to be I think a little fluid over time. Initially though,
they probably won't be much of a spill-over.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
computer work?

Well, isn't Martha's position right now full time on

MR. FUKUOKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, she, if she takes on the Council Services, the
Supervising Council Services Clerk position she's going to be taking over those job
responsibilities, also?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, the Computer Tech position will have to alleviate some
of her computer job duties right now in order for that to be able to work?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Chairman, thank you.
So, so, Mr. Director, with the
consolidating of functions, with the change in scope of functions, and you've also
referenced the mixed functions of, of the support, does this in fact mean that you would
have to reorganize and re-describe existing support people's job descriptions to now make
it fit this recommendation?
MR. FUKUOKA: We wouldn't do so initially. My, my expectation, and you know I may be
proven wrong, is that the, the people who are, who are Council Services Clerks right
now, who have, in the last few months, taken on a lot of function and are able to perform
quite a lot more independently than, than, say, two years ago, those people would
continue to do so and would not require the same level of supervision. That would
enable Martha to be able to continue to deliver services probably leaning more on the
contractor, HPSI. But the first order of business would be to recruit for a technician, an
assistant of some kind, because as you know, you know, our recruitment process is very
structured. So, that's, that's the first thing we would want to do.
Now over time, what's likely to happen is there's going to be a melding of the functions.
It's going to be over . . . I don't know what the word is, there's going to be some
overlapping going on; and at some point, a re-description is going to be necessary, I, I'm
expecting. And that is one of the advantages, you know, because in the long run the
application of technology to the transactions that need to be done in order to support the
Council. and they don't only support the Office of Council Services. It's just going to
grow and grow and become more and more complicated, and so they, they will ultimately
have to transition into something else. All of us do, I guess, but they in particular will
have to.
On the other hand, you know, there will be times when, when, let's say, the reception
function in the front of the seventh floor, there may be times that the Computer
Technician might have to handle that or the Supervisor may have to handle that. And
that's the advantage of having five people in that section. Right now, there are very, it
doesn't often happen, but sometimes there are very, almost painful kind of restrictions on
what kind of long-term vacations people can take and things like that, because when you
gotta spread the load among a relatively few people and you don't have the ability to, to,
to be backing up each other easily, then it gets hard to schedule leaves and things like that
or even training. Maybe more justifiably I should point to training. So, that's the sort of
thing that is a benefit I see.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Director. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Mr. Pontanilla.

- 60-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 18,2005

COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chair. The organizational chart on 5-1 for
our Council Services, I guess, the position that Frances holds presently is the Office of
Council Service.
MR. FUKUOKA: Actually, the Office of Council Services, I guess it would be me in there.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, that's you.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah. I mean obviously I'm not, this only kind of shows the relationship
between the, the sections, groups of people. Right now, Frances heads up what is called
Administrative Support.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. FUKUOKA: And I have to kind of warn you that the Legislative Branch is, is maybe a
little atypical. It's hard to apply, you know, a standard organizational chart to it. For
example, we have the Council Chair on top; but actually, the Council Chair is to some
degree the administrative head and then to some degree, you know, is responsible to all
of the Members. So, I guess what I'm trying to say is you have to take this organizational
chart with a grain of salt. But essentially what's happening here is there's a function in
the Research Section that is being transferred over to the Administrative Support.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
Administrative Support area?

So right now, Martha's position comes under the

MR. FUKUOKA: No. She's in Research.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In Research.
MR. FUKUOKA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So the Research Section then disappears?
MR. FUKUOKA: No, the Research Section is, is still there, you know. It's headed up by the
Supervisor, which is Dianne Shimizu. Right now the Computer Administrative position
within the Research Section actually is paid at the same level as a Legislative Analyst.
When, when that position moves over to be Administrator of the Administrative Support
Section I guess my feeling is that there should be an increase in pay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. So, the person that's going to be the so-called
expert in the computer area would be reporting to the Administrative Support area or to
the, where it is today, Research Section?
MR. FUKUOKA: For the, for the foreseeable future, I think, when I say foreseeable I mean the
next year or two, the real expert is going to be the head of the Administrative Support
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Section. That, that'll be the person that we'd have to rely on. But along the way there
would be a technician that would be hired in that section -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. FUKUOKA: --and that, that person would be brought along, hopefully, allowing the head
of the Administrative Support Section more and more time to deal with more strategic
issues.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. So, right now there is no increase in the head
count, am I right?
MR. FUKUOKA: That is a major constraint and one of the reasons for that is because we don't
have desk space.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. The last question I have, you mentioned about
there's a possibility of overlapping of, I guess, job responsibilities, which will give you
some flexibility in doing their job. Are any of the employees within the section
represented by any bargaining unit?
MR. FUKUOKA: No. All of our positions are appointed, excluded from collective bargaining
and exempt from Civil Service.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. So, the transition in regards to your planning then
shouldn't be hampered by, I guess, concerns by the employees?
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, we, we try to take those concerns into account. I've, I've talked to most
of them involved, and they're okay with what, what I'm proposing. We don't have to
check with unions.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Okay. Thank you, Ken. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ken, because we're getting constrained because of space
again and with some potential movement of different departments or whatever over to the
One Main Plaza, particularly within the computer technician support system, would there
be any room or any way to co-locate one of our people like in with MIS? So that, you
know, if that's what they're doing exclusively if they're working primarily on targeting
and troubleshooting and looking at all of our problems with our actual systems
operations, to give you that additional space that you're looking for?
MR. FUKUOKA: There are, there are reasons why we, we have not tried to consolidate the
function with MIS; primarily, because we believed, we have believed in the past that it
was important for the Council to be able to establish its own priorities. If we were to
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consolidate with the Administration, and, and that's not without precedent in other
Counties, the only difficult, difficulty would be that push come to shove the priorities of
the Mayor would control. In our situation here, there has been value, I think, in being
independent, but consolidation is, you know we could, we could study it, we could
provide you folks with a recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Excuse me. But I just, I don't want you to go on because
that's not what I'm saying. I'm not looking at consolidating. I'm saying co-location, like
in other words, we could locate physically the person within the MIS unit but not
organizational I y.
MR. FUKUOKA: You know, it's, it's possible but it's not ideal. It's, it's good to be able to talk
directly with people all the time. If we were to split them off as a separate section, let's
say, you know, a Computer Administrator and a Technician then I can see locating them
someplace else together. But to have one someplace else is tough, I think.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, would that feasible then to look at putting two people
together and finding some place, whether it's within this building, when someone vacates
an area? You know because the reason I'm, I'm asking this, Ken, is because I see us
being constrained simply by physical limitations. And you know I think everyone of us
knows how long it takes just to get response, because the workload is so much on the
increase and when you've got the nine of us, not to mention other outside work that
comes in from our constituents, continuously coming forward, it's not going to get any
easier, it's only going to get worse. And I'd rather not be constrained by physical
limitations but look at it, what do we need in order to do the job and to respond to the
challenges that we have. You kind of understand where I'm going, Ken?
MR. FUKUOKA: I'm, I'm, I think a little bit. You know the constraints on space are, are a
major problem not only for our office but for everybody and including the Members,
especially almost, when I think about it, the Members. And actually, I think the Council
Chair has been in touch with the Administration to try to see what can be done in terms of
allocating space, when it's vacated in this building, to our offices, including the Council
Members' offices. And that's going to be a major project in terms of trying to figure out
who goes where.
That is one of the reasons why I'm kind of hanging back on the, the plan we had
originally to rearrange the front of the seventh floor, because that was supposed to result
in a net increase of one desk. But we're hanging back on that to see how this shakes out,
you know, the scheduling and the moves. It's not entirely clear right now how that's
going to go, but I hear what you saying. I guess what I'm trying to say is that when you
get a section of two, three people it becomes to difficult to cover each other and for us,
you know, I mean, if, if it was only my little office we, we were worried about then it
wouldn't be so bad. But it means that even the Members wouldn't get coverage and we,
sometimes it involves the district offices and you know. So it's, it's important to maintain
the backup.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because you're in this transition mode and you're kind of
waiting for, I guess, this, I guess, the whole process to unfold and see what space is freed
up if any. Because the Mayor is the one that actually introduces any mid-term budget
amendments, would it be possible for you to, if let's say mid-year you found that, yes,
there was space, would it be possible for you or let's say, the Council Chair or the Budget
Chair to come to the Mayor and then propose this kind of a change, so that right now
what we're looking at is not a net gain, but it may be that we may be adding one
additional position later on. Is that a possibility?
MR. FUKUOKA: Sure. Sure. That, that would change a lot if we didn't have space limitations.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ken, excuse me, Martha would be
moving up to Frances' cubicle if, if this all plays out according to the plan?
MR. FUKUOKA: There are different alternatives as far as positioning people in different
spaces. I don't -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But I mean -MR. FUKUOKA: --don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --if it's a supervisory position she's, the person's going to
have to be up-front somewhere where they're easily ... not necessarily?
MR. FUKUOKA: Not necessarily, but it's a possibility.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, because the space that Martha currently utilizes, I'm
assuming, that would be the place for the Computer Technician.
MR. FUKUOKA: It could be or it could be that the Computer Technician would go where
Frances is now or there may be shifts even within the people who are currently up there.
I, I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well I, the reason I bring it up is it seems that since the
computer equipment that was in Martha's space has been moved out there's more space
there now.
MR. FUKUOKA: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you know in, if it, it seems to me that there would be
plenty of room.
MR. FUKUOKA: I don't think so. You know originally it was designed so that there would be
three little cubicles in, in a row right there. I think Scott is in one, and then there would
be two where Martha is. But when we actually laid them out it became difficult actually
to have three; and actually, for this computer thing there's a lot of stuff that they keep.
You know they have to keep, well, software, hardware, supplies, things like that. There
have to be places for that, and so I, I don't really think that we can fit in another person in
there. Where people sit is ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, there's two spaces in there right now, and when the
computer consultant comes in he's got a space where he sits and works.
MR. FUKUOKA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's all I had to say. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further questions in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In regards to your filing, I guess, cabinets, things like
that, you need to be in close proximity for people working in, on the seventh floor?
MR. FUKUOKA: Do, do the files have to be near us?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
MR. FUKUOKA: It's hard to answer that question only because I don't know how far we can get
with this imaging system. You know the document-imaging system was supposed to, I, I
still hope that it will reduce the need to have actual file cabinets on site. There's like,
there's a bunch of file cabinets in my office that take up space, too. But there are right
now relatively few file cabinets compared to the actual documents that we have. There's
a lot off-site right now.
Can we do with less space on site? I'm not sure. It would be kind of pushing it, I think,
right now. But as we progress with the document-imaging system naturally the hope is
that there will be less and less need for on-site storage.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
imaging all of your documents?

So, you have any target date in regards to, I guess,
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MR. FUKUOKA: No. No. I don't. Right now, I think the challenge is to get it to the point
where people have integrated the scanning into the process. It's going to take some
education not necessarily only of the workers, it's the users, including the Members. And
I have, I suppose I have changed my mind on how quickly it could be done. In the
beginning, I had thought that it was something we could go paperless, maybe there would
be a chance for that happening. I never really thought it was a slam-dunk, but I think I
had more optimism about that than I do now.
I think now, I treat it like, like any other office innovation, where I tend to look at things
incrementally to try to know where the direction is and try to convince people of what the
direction is and trust that they move ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... get there. But no, I haven't
established a deadline. I could. I'd actually prefer not to, but I could.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. I was kind of wondering if utilizing some of, let's
say, summer intern program to at least support your Department in trying to image all of
your documents, and that way it doesn't take away from your workload. Yeah. Of
course, three months, you know.
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, whether it's summer or during the year, you know, we have the
capability now of having low-level help in imaging. The problem is doing it reliably.
Apparently, you know, the real cost in back documents, integrating those into a system, is
you have to do it exactly right, 'cause if you don't index it exactly right it's as good as
lost. So, it has to be done with some care. In addition, the key is to get the new stuff in
as it comes in, to feed it in. If you can do that reliably, then the backlog is something you
can deal with later, actually. But the initial challenge is to get the new stuff in and to get
it to be used by people.
We are in the process now of buying scanners. I think in the budget there's couple more.
But we're trying different ways of getting this, getting this document entry done. One
way is our Xerox machines, we're converting them into scanners over time as we, as we
replace them. We end up replacing them with machines that are capable as scanners.
Another way is, we are distributing slower but smaller scanners, desktop-type scanners to
people who we think can use them. And so, hopefully, that will make it easier for them
to, to, well to start getting really into this process. I think the Planning Committee is
trying to move ahead as a pilot kind of thing. It's a lot to do at one time for everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions in this area? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The computers we have right now, Ken, are, scan every
document that we copy. They can't be used as scanners?
MR. FUKUOKA: You mean the, the photocopiers that we have?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Uh-huh.
MR. FUKUOKA: One of our photocopiers does that, and the rest, although the technology is
digital, they don't really behave as scanners. That's a more expensive version. And
actually, we are thinking about, I, I think the Support Section is, is considering a
conversion of one of them into such a machine.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would it be possible to get job descriptions for these new
positions? So, we could see exactly-MR. FUKUOKA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --what they'll be doing?
MR. FUKUOKA: Sure. They're going to be fairly generic but sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And in relationship also to the existing job description for
the Supervising Council Services Clerk.
MR. FUKUOKA: Okay. That's not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any more questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can end this, Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: For now and then we'll, we'll open it up but just for now since that was his
opening comments, and we have those several pages of that. And then the Chair will
open it up for all the other things, Mr. Hokama.
Members, without objections, the Chair would like to just ask a few questions, and I will
state for the record that if there's any Member who feels that it's inappropriate due to a
unique circumstance that my spouse is in this Division, if you folks have a problem with
me asking certain questions that may seem inappropriate, please feel free. I won't take it
personal, but I need to get a clearer understanding of this Division and what the
recommendation is.
Mr. Fukuoka, so I'm concluding from your presentation that the Support Section will be
broadened to incorporate computer-related functions, and so there's a couple of areas.
First on your first Page 1-C, which is possible problems and then the Letter I, you have
additional workload for Council Services Clerk positions, and then you list two items.
And I guess I'm unclear, because it seems though the additional workload doesn't
correlate with what you're stating there, because in your additional workload you don't
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identify that there's a potential for computer-related function and servicing. Since now,
the computer-related functions are being incorporated into the support staff, there's not
mention of the three Support Clerks within the Division getting any type of training or
even compensation in this area for the expanded amount of work. Can you help me
understand or help the body understand what your intentions are there? And because
there's no line of civil service, because these are appointed, at what point is it a, is it a
discretionary call as to what level expanded duties are incorporated into this expanded
Support Section before it's determined that they should, the Clerk staff should be looked
at with a different scope of work, I think what Mr. Mateo brought up, and, and get their
fair level of compensation as well as fair level of training to, to do the job. 'Cause right
now what you're describing, Mr. Fukuoka, from what I see, you're only talking about the
supervisory level and the Computer Tech that will eventually come in. But you're not
talking about the other staff members who, a) no mention of training and b) no mention
of compensation based on the, the potential increase of duties, which you list right there,
additional workload for Council Services work position, Clerk position. Comments?
MR. FUKUOKA: Thank you. The Council Services Clerk positions, initially, would not
change. It's not clear to me what role they would play in terms of the computer system.
If the role that they play ends up being very transitory, very temporary or very easy to do
then it wouldn't require an increase in the pay there. It wouldn't merit an increase.
Initially, I did not think that they would do anything with computers. What I mentioned
was because there is a concern, that I have, that those positions could be dead-ended, that
there would be no way for them to upgrade. And, and yet I'm not sure, I, at this point,
what the upgrade would be. It would depend upon what the capabilities of the people are.
It would depend upon how the, the section ends up handling the computer, the computer
responsibilities. But it's, it's something that's going to have to transition over time. In
fact, I would expect that in the first six months they would be doing pretty much what
they're doing now, just continuing on with the work. They're going to be working minus
a supervisor there. I'm hoping that Frances can be kept on for awhile to assist, but
eventually she won't be there anymore.
The, the expectation would be that the fact that the, the binder updates have been turned
back over to the Committee Secretary's position, together with the fact that there's been a
greater degree of delegation from the Supervisor of that section, of the Administrative
Support Section that is, over the last few months. And hopefully that there's going to be
some improvements in the workload because of the use of technology will make the
situation livable there, but there is a risk and I, I felt that I had to disclose it.
CHAIR KANE: So, for this proposed budget item for Fiscal Year '06, the Clerks in this Division
... okay. Ms. Hirano, hopefully, can continue on a half-time basis temporarily until the
Computer Tech is in place. Meanwhile, Ms. Suzuki moves over and becomes the
Council Services Supervisor in the Administrative Support Section. And until we get a
Computer Tech hired, basically, Ms. Suzuki would continue in her official capacity until
a Computer Tech is hired; and in the meantime, the Support staff or the Clerks, because
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they've had more focus on function delegation there won't need to be, until a tech is hired,
any real type of training or compensation issues to be, to be identified or, or looked at
more closely?
MR. FUKUOKA: That's right. I'm hoping or my, I'm expecting that the functions will not
change significantly in the short term. And how the functions will change a year, two
years out is a little speculative for me at this point.
CHAIR KANE: No, and I understand that. Thank you. I just wanted to get clarity as far as
what, what your scope of transition and, and the expectation of, of, of the consolidation is
going to be with respects to the, the, the sitting employees, because they were hired to do
certain things and now you're folding in a whole new component of high-tech computer
function, and they mayor may not be trained and able to take on additional
responsibilities without their training and compensation. So, that was something I was
just trying to get clear.
MR. FUKUOKA: That, that's, that's, that's correct and you know there's a fine line I'm kind of
walking here. I don't want to promise increases in compensation. I don't want to promise
that functions can be successfully transferred. And yet, I know that, in the long run, there
is going to be a value in having something more than three people there. It just makes
sense, -CHAIR KANE: Yeah. And-MR. FUKUOKA: --you know.
CHAIR KANE: --and I as one of nine Members understand, understand that need for
redundancy in this area. Okay, Members. We can move on. Thank you for allowing me
to ask some of those questions. Oh, I'm sorry, Member Johnson. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And this is in no way to take away from everything that
you've come up with. Have you considered, rather than you or you know even us as
Council Members evaluating this whole thing, bringing in an outside, either performance
audit or efficiency expert or somebody, who has expertise outside of this room and
outside of this building, to come in and actually do an analysis to look at the function?
Because what I'm sensing is we're looking at tailoring the jobs to more fit individual
personnel that we have in these positions now. And it mayor may not be the case, but I
don't want to get into that situation because one person's retiring and this person has a
certain skill set. Have you considered that or would you be open to that rather than
moving forward with this proposal right now?
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, to some degree, I am taking an
general, the concept makes sense. I think if we
options. Given the money that we have, the desk
thinking that anything else can be done. If there
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tion, then, I mean,
know, if there is somebody that can come in and quickly do an evalua
not married to this
I'm willing to subject myself to that. It's not, you know, I'm not, I'm
any alternatives? It's
thing. It's, it's more an issue of do we have the time, are there really
more things like that.
It's, we set aside money
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I completely respect that.
be best in terms of
to audit other Departments to help them to find out, well, what would
no problem with
structuring, in terms of organization, in terms of efficiency. I have
mendations, which
making that same money available to come up with a set of recom
you haven't thought
may actually support some very creative things that we haven't or
about, ways that we could approach the problem.
asked we have the
It may require more money but at least then if we're asked, if you're
be another, even just
justification to say, yes, this is a way that we could proceed. It may
other Counties are
what
looking at other legislative operations. It may be reviewing
doing.
e we seem to be
But at this point in time, Mr. Chair, I, I have some concerns becaus
s to me to be a
constrained by a lot of things, and we're trying to put in what appear
serves the long-term
stopgap measure. And that never, to my way of thinking, it never
and then find out if
purposes. So I, I would ask, Mr. Fukuoka, if you could consider that,
amount of that
the
such a person or such an outside review would be possible, what
e that to us.
would be. I would appreciate getting that in writing if you can provid
. If, if we were going in that
MR. FUKUOKA: I will look into it. I, I should, I should be honest
I suppose, then I
direction and I, I understand that, you know, it's as good a way as any,
n, the Supervisor
don't think we have time to consider this. I think I would fill that positio
don't have time to
position when it's vacated as, as well as I could, because we
could leave the
reconfigure it. That's basically what my current problem is. You
that kind of advice,
situation as it is. But as far as trying to consider how we could get
sure.
that would be, if we did
COUN CILM EMBE R JOHNSON: Okay. One more question and
from a professional
utilize, let's, say a temporary hire or somebody to come in
r possibility that,
anothe
be
organization outside, you know, firm or whatever, would that
but the position
in other words, this person would be there through a transition period
n where we've got
may change. 'Cause I don't want to get us locked into a positio
of their life when
somebody there who anticipates they're going to be there for the rest
we're in transition.
is someb ody who's going to
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, the difficulty is actually that what we need
to be hard to fill a
comm it themselves to it and take the time to learn it. And it's going
h the transfer. It's
Supervisor position like that, I mean, assuming we don't go throug
temp.
a
going to be hard to fill a Supervisor position like that with, with
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The most we could do is probably move somebody up into the Supervisor position and
fill the position that is left then vacant or the function that's left vacant. But even that's
going to be hard, because after the delegation occurred over the last few months these are
relatively complex jobs now. It's not like just a clerk anymore. There's a lot of
independence that's associated with the function. So, there, there would be difficulties.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I appreciate this. I think that just myself, as being
one of nine Council Members, basically, when I look at our function that we have to
perform I put a great deal of faith and trust in what you're able to do. Because this has
only just come to my attention now, it would have been nice if I had, had or I don't, I
can't speak for other people, but I personally would have liked to have a little bit more
lead time, because I think we could have come up with perhaps an approach that might
have taken into account some of these other options.
That's, that's just basically, you know, what we're looking at, and because you perform
really, you know, to try to serve our needs, I think it's helpful if we can understand what
the challenges are as well in advance as possible. So, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Members, the floor is open for any area of the Office
of Council Services. Mr. Hokama followed by Ms. Tavares.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Let me just start by saying that Mr. Fukuoka serves in a very
demanding position for us as well as the reality is we could have ... wait, what was our
last count? Forty nine if we count the clerks minus the two civil servants? We could
actually have 47 new employees every two years, that's the reality. We can have a
brand-new Council Services Director every two years; we can have brand-new
Secretaries, brand-new Legislative Analysts, because all they get out of our appointment
is a two-year agreement, nothing more, nothing less. And, and that's the reality of some
of the uniqueness of those who wish to serve in the Legislative Branch.
Well, one thing that I, I will say before I ask my question in other area, Mr. Chairman, is
that I think Mr. Fukuoka gave us a starting point to look at. I'm not one to convert into
Civil Service, for a Legislative Branch, certain positions. To me, that's part of the
advantages or functions of a Legislator has, whether it be in the Federal Government,
State Government or County Government, there's certain unique patronage positions that
needs to be, remain in that category.
And Mr. Fukuoka makes a comment on Page 2 on the bottom when he states why he
recommends certain positions at a certain pay level is because 1) we generally don't have
collective bargaining rights, as well as 2) that they do not have Civil Service protection.
But our employees enter into this employment fully aware of the limitations and
parameters that they work at.
One of the things that I did want to bring up since Mr. Fukuoka has been looking at how
to better serve the Council versus the individual Members. And I can appreciate that
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because that's how I always viewed the individual Member's allocations versus the
overall Council allocations. So, saying that and I guess most of you know that regarding
the Council allocations I look at it as the staff providing the Committees, the body as a
whole, the services it needs to perform. And I look at the individual Council Members
offices with this allocation to provide them with individual needs for the district and their
constituency, not the Legislative Analyst division, unless we all want to make a change
and, and do it differently.
Well, the one thing I think maybe we need to better understand is have we caught up on
the transcription of minutes and other requirements either from Committees or for the
Committees, 'cause Council would come under Clerk's, Clerk's Division. Can you give
us status, Mr. Fukuoka?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes. Yes. I think we've caught up.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is it your intention to continue to hire third parties to do
transcriptions with current requirements?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes. To the degree that the current staff of the secretary, Committee
Secretary Section is not able to, to do them, and the priority would be of course
confidential things like Executive Session minutes. Yes. The direction is to outsource
that function.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What requirements has changed so much that, that is not part of their
requirements anymore?
MR. FUKUOKA: The volume. It's not possible for them, as a group, to keep up with the
volume.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, for Ms. Sakamoto, I can agree, budget transcription minutes
would take up more than her one full-time job. So, I can appreciate that comment.
MR. FUKUOKA: Actually, if I may add, it was never possible. That's the reason we have that
backlog, we had it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Irregardless of the, the Committee?
MR. FUKUOKA: I'm sorry. I don't understand.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: To me, budget is one of our major Committees, right? So,
obviously, with budget deliberations, budget session, long nights, we go every day during
budget session, I can understand what you're saying. But not all Committees function at
that level. Okay, not all Committees use all their, all their slot allocations to hold
meetings.
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So, for that one position serving that Committee, the demand of transcription is a lot less.
And yet we going to contract out those Committee transcription requirements, too? Is
that your intention from a general application? What, what I'm telling is I don't see the
workload same for all of the staffing because of certain Committees' role in the Council is
not all the same at the same, you know, and that's my point.
MR. FUKUOKA: What is supposed to be happening is when you have an overload from one
Committee it also goes to the other Committees to the degree -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's what you need to -MR. FUKUOKA: --to the degree -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --inform us.
MR. FUKUOKA: --that it actually handles, can handle it. And so, for example, if you have
Committee of the Whole and they're doing a lot of Executive Sessions those are things
we want to retain in-house to the degree we can. Those minutes go to the other
secretaries as well. If there's a need for expedited treatment there are times when the
secretary will do that, that meeting or maybe a segment of that meeting just because we,
we need it right away, maybe some litigation or something. But it's not only the minutes
that they do. The, the procedures that we go through to, to staff a meeting before, during,
after, all of those elements have expanded.
It's just the Sunshine Law, the, the length of the meetings, I guess what the public
expects. It's just less and less time for minutes. But when I said, we never were keeping
up it was because even before the recent emphasis on, on being open, you know, having
our, having all of these procedures followed to the letter, even before all of that happened
our office was not keeping up. In fact, the only reason why we're now, we're now caught
up is, at some point, the Council got, basically, upset and said, we don't care about what it
takes, you just have to do it, so.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And you're absolutely right. And when we pushed for that, I was
under the assumption that eventually we would be able to cut back that funding to
support the section, but we'll be current and, therefore, I could reduce the budget
requirements. But you telling us this afternoon that things have also changed whereby
new requirements have come up to take the place of what was originally our
understanding when we funded the resources to come to current status regarding
transcription.
MR. FUKUOKA: I don't know if it's all new requirements. Some of it is, as time goes on,
things get more complex. But I think ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... there's an element of, of
my not really seeing how much work was involved to begin with. But the cost is going
down, you know, obviously, you don't have the backlog to do. So, the cost is going
down, but was, was it always thought that it would go down to zero? Maybe, at one time,
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there was a hope, but even with court reporters working on it, you know, 30 days is
tough. And there have been one or two instances where we haven't made it, even with
that. So, it, you know ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, is that 30 days reasonable? Do we need to make adjustments in
that requirement?
MR. FUKUOKA: Well ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Especially since we, we are hardheaded, I guess, as a body to not
want to even reconsider summary minutes for Committee purposes. You know, we've
made a basic stand just like the Feds and the State. When it comes to the official session
minutes of the Congress or, or the Legislature everything is verbatim. And we have
chosen to be verbatim with Committee minutes and at times, it has served its tremendous
usefulness as an advantage. But it makes a big difference, doesn't it, summary minutes
and verbatim minutes at the Committee level, the cost?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah. You know, this issue of summary versus verbatim or near-verbatim
minutes is, is a real difficult one for me. I think, I do think many times the Sunshine Law
is interpreted in ways that are overly restrictive on government agencies. But in this one
area the OIP goes in the other direction, it says summary minutes are okay. It's just that
when I look at the law and I look at the bias that's built into the law that the Legislature
built into the law I don't see how one can do summary minutes well enough that we'll
save money over verbatim minutes. Verbatim minutes, I think, are actually easier to do
at the level that I think the law requires. Now, OIP will say that no, you know, you can
be more summarized than that, but very frankly I, I don't see it.
So, its been in a way convenient for me that the Members have taken the position that
they prefer verbatim or near-verbatim minutes, because it happens to agree with my
interpretation of that Sunshine Law and my feeling that you cannot just interpret the
Sunshine Law the way you think it is convenient at the time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. FUKUOKA: You have to have some consistency.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I just bring that up because then you and I have had the
conversations what I expect from Committee reports and that amount of detail I expect
from a Committee report of any Committee, explaining the end result, which is a
recommendation to the full body for a legislative action.
MR. FUKUOKA: Right. I think, I think your concern was that the Committee reports should,
should be more focused on the policy arguments.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, do you have a point, too?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Point of order.
CHAIR KANE: Point of order. State your point.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, a point.
CHAIR KANE: State your point, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You have directed us through this budget discussions to
stay focused on what's in front of us. And there's nothing in here that has anything to do
with what's being discussed right now, and I think it may be appropriate in a Committee,
so that we can move on with the budget.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and I thank you for stating your point. Mr. Hokama, if you, the Chair is
going to agree somewhat.
I know where you're going and, and I'm trying
to ... (inaudible) ... relate the discussion to the transcription program services and the
contractual services on Detail 3-5 for what we have in the current fiscal year of 206,000
and what is being proposed by the Director of 134,000. There's a reduction of over
70,000 in the contractual services for transcription. So I, I've allowed you to go forward,
because I know you're trying to, you know, establish what, what direction can we go or
will go.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And again I think that was a fair comment by my colleague
from the South Maui. But for those of you that know me well, okay, from 2004 to
2005 budget over $1 million increase, 30-something percent increase, okay, that I also
supported. Okay. We're increasing it, again, for those that watch our budget or on the
outside is wondering why we continue to have a growing budget, when some of our
premises that we have budgeted on has been achieved. So, how do we explain why we
don't reduce our budget when we've reached certain things?
It's like how certain departments, they don't want that bottom-line number to change. So,
they're going to make up things to fill those slots, you know, on the short term has been
achieved so that they don't get a reduction in their general allocation. But to be fair we
need to view our budgets the same way.
CHAIR KANE: And I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama. I'm trying to figure out where your increase that
you're identifying, 'cause I know you're talking about ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chairman, if you look at 5-10, and that, that's the one,
Chairman, we show 2004 actual $3.165 million; 'OS, $4.19 million. Okay. We also
increase individual office's accounts, so while we scrutinize the Departments we need to
scrutinize ourselves, too.
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CHAIR KANE: I, I guess I'm just trying to relate it to the ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My point is, have we achieved some of the considerations that we
had hoped for. And is the results that now that we have caught up on the transcription
side is that same amount of money still necessary to continue?
CHAIR KANE: And I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama. I guess my point was that in the transcription
program there's a $71,000 decrease from last year to this year and that's why I'm trying to
get clarity from your, your line of questioning. I'm, that's, that's what I'm trying ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's fair, Chairman. And that's very fair that, yeah, I know
there's a decrease, Chairman. But I wanted to know, are we still going to continue what I
consider current requirements? Okay. Because like you, Chairman, you know, I review
a request for payments, I sign off, I notice we're very current on some Committees like
one month old. So, I'm trying to understand, you know, are we going to continue to do it
this way and part of the review that he has made to have us consider an adjustment in the
staffing as well as the structure of OCS is this something also going to be done with the
secretarial section? Because during, it appears to me the requirements have changed and
we're approaching things differently. Okay.
So to me, just to be fair that we can explain if asked, we will go third party for all
transcription except for certain things like Executive Sessions. 'Cause the other question,
to be fair, should be asked is instead of going third party have we decided to hire one or
two more in the secretarial section? Okay. Mr. Fukuoka said we have physical restraints,
no desk space, no additional square footage to expand his office, so we understand that
point.
I think what we ask today about ourselves needs to be asked, Mr. Chairman. Knowing
that Mr. Fukuoka has taken these things into account and has come up what he believes is
the best to service not only the Council but its standing Committees. 'Cause he has made
no comment today on the individual Member's accounts and I do not expect him to. So,
that, that's what I was trying to get at, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank, thank you, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I'm happy to allow any other Member his opportunity. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Thank you. Chair's appropriate question to ask. It was
regarding the carryover savings from this, this Department. Do you know what it is at
this point?
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MR. FUKUOKA: You mean, what, what is anticipated? No, I don't.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The anticipated carryover savings yeah.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah. I'm sorry, I don't.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Perhaps by the time we get into deliberation we can have that
number or your best estimate. 'Cause it goes into the quarterly report, right?
MR. FUKUOKA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh. We're not in the quarterly report?
MR. FUKUOKA: No, no. We're in the quarterly report it's just that it involves a projection of,
of things over which, you know, I have little control. You know like for instance, well,
the easy one is like mileage for the Council Members a certain amount is set aside. We
don't touch it, nobody should touch it. In the beginning, people were filing years past.
Recently, you know, a lot of times we end up with savings, and yet for me to say that
that's going to carry forward is hard. And there are a lot more bigger, more complicated
issues than that in there. But I can, I can try.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yeah. If you can try and give us an amount from, for what
you think. 'Cause I know we put in, you know, amounts of money for in case we need to
do something or you know professional services, especially, because we don't have
control over the budget once it's passed and we can't amend it ourselves. So, I know we
build in some of those sort of unforeseen, perhaps, that may come during the year. So, if
we could get a status of where we are, maybe just with professional services, maybe just
that one category. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Any other questions in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just so that, you know -CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --we're all clear. That is where we would utilize requirements for
various audits, right, Mr. Fukuoka?
CHAIR KANE: That's where I was going, yeah.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: So, on Page 3-6 of details there's a, there's $150,000 increase there and so
perhaps, Mr. Fukuoka, if you could provide some initial comment for us today on the, on
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the, the reason for the audit services going from 350 for this current year to 500 for the
'06 year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What page you're on, Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: We're on page, on that question is from, on Details 3-6. It's about half way
down, audit professional services. Under Audit Service 6103 there's a $150,000 increase
in this area.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, for clarification.
CHAIR KANE: Ms., Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: While they're getting settled for that question. Could you
explain to me again, the audit services amount, that is to allow Council to audit various
departments?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. FUKUOKA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Fukuoka.
MR. FUKUOKA: Okay. In the February memo, you know, it explains what, what the
calculations were, the background is for the items. The-CHAIR KANE: And some Members -MR. FUKUOKA: --audit services ...
CHAIR KANE: --Mr. Fukuoka, hang on one second. Some Members may not have that
February communication in front of them, so keep that in mind as you make your
comments, please.
MR. FUKUOKA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. FUKUOKA: This was a result of, of ... the annual audit be pegged at 200,000. That's the
annual financial audit, and the reason why that's going up is because in the last two or
three years and we expect into the future, into the near-term future, that the cost is going
to rise just because the auditing profession is becoming more and more focused on ... on a
variety of issues that just makes the testing much more expensive.
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The other audits we put at 300,000. That is just pulled out of the air, frankly. We, we
understand that a sizable, you know, a serious audit, a performance audit costs about
150,000. Professional services is at 200,000 and professional services is more a
contingency. 200,000, there's nothing magic about it except that it's the amount that we
had always tried to set aside in case the Council has to take a lawsuit to court or
something like that. We've never really come close to using it, but it is a contingency.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions within the Office of Council Services, not just
limited to that area but any other of the areas? The "A" Account raises for both Council
Members as well as Council staff, excuse me, the Office of Council Services staff and
that number is reflected on 3-3 of your details ... and 3-4 of your details.
"B" Account, Members, pretty flat with the exception, it's about $45,000 difference,
which generally speaking could be reflected in the change on the number right above on
Page 311 from 24 to 67 under adjustments. And then "C" Account, there's some
expansion besides the ongoing leases for the three Xerox machines. Members, if there
are any further questions ... oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I'm just playing catch-up ball with you guys, so
don't mind me if I ask a silly question. The Chairman's contingency on 3-6, in '04 it was
980; in '05 it was 12,155; now it's 9,000. Could someone explain that to me what that is
actually used for?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Fukuoka.
MR. FUKUOKA: Okay. The Chair's contingency. Well, one of the things to be careful about
when you're looking at these figures is the figure for '04 is actual expenditures. The
figure for '05 is the amount set aside -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
MR. FUKUOKA: --you know, so the appropriated amount. And then the request is, is, you
know, '06 now.
The Chair's contingency in '04 was low because not that much was spent. '05 got to be
more because it included the inauguration. '06 is at nine, 9,000 and actually it's, it's really
9,900-something. Because a couple of years ago we settled into this convention where
the Chair's contingency, in addition to the inauguration expense, is there as a supplement
to the Chair's individual account, provided that, that amount in the Chair's contingency is
used on behalf of the Council. 'Cause the Council Chair has all these expenses that, that
Members don't have. And so, if necessary, you know, the Chair's contingency can be
drawn from for expenditures that are of, of the nature that the Council Chair would,
would undertake because of the role of Council Chair.
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The amount was something we, we've arbitrarily adopted. As a calculation we took the
percentage difference between the Salary Commission's determined salary for Council
Members and the salary for the Council Chair. So, we took the percentage difference
there; we applied that percentage difference to whatever the Council Members decided
was appropriate for the individual allowance account; and then that difference, which is
currently, I think, about 9 percent, that difference is used for the amount we adding to the
Chair's contingency fund, so that the Chair can undertake whatever extra functions the
Chair has to undertake.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you for explaining it.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions, Members? If there are further questions, again, we've
reached the point in our process that it'd probably be more effective for you to send your
questions either in writing or contact Mr. Fukuoka directly to get any clarifications on his
proposals. And that would wrap our meeting with Mr. Fukuoka this afternoon. Two
things, Members, as far as housecleaning. Mr. Fukuoka, thank you for your time this
afternoon.
MR. FUKUOKA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hiraga is not going to be with us this afternoon. He is not feeling well and
he has not been to work. So, he has provided though, however on April 13th, memo,
Members, discussing his Fiscal Year '06 budget, and the Chair would ask you to, if you
haven't already done so, to review his request and if there are any questions that you can
take them up directly with the Clerk's office and Mr. Hiraga, our County Clerk. And then
before we consider a recess, we may be, we may be able to adjourn this afternoon
already, because we did reschedule what we had originally scheduled with one of the
other departments.
However, if there are any follow-up requests regarding Departments to return for
clarification we ask that you please make that note either now or some time today with
staff, and we'll make the necessary arrangements to get somebody back here. Otherwise,
tomorrow morning we've been made aware and I believe we've already had it submitted
to us and so instead of holding it up until tomorrow morning, the Chair will have
Ms. Sakamoto provide for you the certification that was given to us today. The
requirement is by tomorrow but they have it today. So, we'll go ahead and submit that, so
you folks understand what the certified number is and I believe what the Mayor has
attached. There's an attachment of how to utilize that fund, if I'm not mistaken. I haven't
seen it myself, Members.
So, what the Chair is going to recommend this afternoon is that we adjourn this meeting
instead of recessing, we adjourn for the afternoon. We can continue to take into account
the proposed budget as stated in a couple of memos and a more recent memo. We will be
having a starting point developed by the Chair of this Committee, and again it will serve
as a starting point only. And obviously, as a body, we will start to, to massage what we
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will deem fit as a, as a proposed budget for the Fiscal Year '06, and we'd be more than
happy to take in any suggestions to be included into the Chair's proposal.
Right now, we're tomorrow having discussions for property tax certification with, and
also real property tax rates, tax credit, time share category. There's proposed, any
proposed changes in the financial procedures, cash advance ceilings. Wednesday again is
held open for follow-ups and starting on Thursday, I believe, in the afternoon, with we're
scheduled we're going to provide to the body the Chair's proposal. Thursday afternoon,
we will probably adjourn that meeting that afternoon and then start first thing Friday
morning, we'll get right into deliberations. We have reserved Saturday morning or the,
half of a day on Saturday, if necessary. Again, you know, Members, based on where we
start off at and how comfortable the body feels will determine our schedule for Friday,
Saturday and all of next week.
And we are scheduled to go, I believe, till Wednesday, Ms. Koller? Next week
Wednesday and again, if necessary, we'll go right into the night until we've, you know,
reached the point where we've made our recommendations for the full Council
consideration. So, we're going to start, start backing off, so you can start develop your
things and then we're going to start picking it up coming this Friday. Questions?
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you. Chair, did you say this was going to have
the, the letter from the Mayor, too?
CHAIR KANE: And that will come ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR KANE: I didn't see it so I thought maybe it was attached to this -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KANE: --but this is the certification that we've received and I believe Ms. Morrison has
some comments. Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. With regard to the schedule, tomorrow the Finance
Director will be here to, essentially, just to answer questions. He does have a formal
presentation to make other than this letter. So, he's just here to answer questions about
the certification and about real property tax issues, in general, that the, that the
Committee may have. The afternoon session was originally scheduled to talk about a
considered increase in the cash advance ceiling, and since the time that that was
scheduled, I've been informed that the Finance Department no longer wishes to make that
request. So, that time is now free.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. During presentations by various
departments we had run across errors and recall you requesting corrected pages. Have
we received any corrected pages?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Most of the questions that went out last week and what
are going out today have a due date of Wednesday, so we will get, I know that we've
been working with the Budget Director to get a list and see where we are on what
elements need to be corrected in the proposal. I think we will be addressing some of that
tomorrow in the letter that the Mayor is submitting.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But we're not getting corrected, actually corrected pages
for the budget?
CHAIR KANE: The request of
for that material as well as all the other material we set
as Wednesday as the deadline to get it everything, and so we can start moving into -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
CHAIR KANE: --our deliberative stage.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for anybody on what the intent of the Committee is to
move forward, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, time now is 3:10. Members, we're going to go ahead and
adjourn this meeting for the 18 of April and we will be convening tomorrow a new
session 9 o'clock. This meeting adjourned ... (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

3:10 p.m.
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